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A Full Service Bank

AYA Bank is a leading private sector bank in Myanmar. The Bank was licensed by the Central Bank
of Myanmar as a development bank on 2nd July 2010 and relicensed under the Financial Institutions
Law 2016 as a full service bank. Registered as a Private Company Limited by Shares on 14th July 2010
and established on 11th August 2010, AYA Bank has been part of promoting the stability of financial
system of the nation.

To create long-term growth, value and sustainability, AYA Bank was reincorporated as a Public
Company Limited on 30th December 2022. The Bank is committed to the strategic roadmap of going
public with higher level of transparency, financial rigor, stringent reporting deadlines and compliance
requirements. This transition from private to public intends to distribute ownership among general
public shareholders in the future and allows them to reap the benefits of a business's success by
delivering strong returns.

Headquartered in Yangon, AYA Bank is serving individuals, small- and middle-market businesses,
large corporations, and government sector with extensive branch network across the country. Our
comprehensive network does not end local, and we are connected to the wider Asia region and
global.

AYA Bank is one of the country’s leading bank with almost (3) million customers and (262) branches.
Our large and loyal customer base has been one of the key drivers of our success, allowing us for
rapid growth over the years. The Bank focus on deepening relationships with customers, providing
best-in-class customer service, and leveraging technology as the enabler to rapidly expand the
customer base.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Native Name @epocr%oocu%

AYEYARWADDY BANK

Type Public

Founded In 2010

Founder U Zaw Zaw

Key Persons U Zaw Zaw
(Founder and Chairman) Products Financial Services

Headquarters Yangon, Myanmar

Daw Khin Saw Oo Motto Your Trusted Partner
(Executive Chairman) Website https://ayabank.com
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LEADING CAPABILITIES

Assets 7 Trillion MMK
Equity 334 Billion MMK
Paid Up Capital 140 Billion MMK
Branches 262

ATMs 832
Exchange Counters 162
Employees Over 6,000

A Driver of Growth

We make financial lives better through our focus on responsible growth. We take the initiatives to
provide customers with financial solutions for their personal and business needs, and to support the
community. Our primary business strategy is to provide comprehensive banking and related financial
solutions through the initiatives of enabling growth and enriching lives.

Taking the drive to cashless transactions and payments, AYA Bank has transformed 52% of active
customers to Digital Banking. The Bank consistently creates significant value to strategic investment
partners, driven by digitalization, human resource development, innovative products and services
across all customer segments.

Business Practices

AYA Bank aims to have an overall positive impact on financial sector as well as social and environment
through responsible practices, align with our Code of Business Conduct, effective governance and
risk and compliance framework. We grow as a responsible business at the strategic, portfolio and

transactional levels and across all business areas with following key highlights,
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Protection: AYA
Bank protects and safeguards customers with

Consumer Financial
accurate and unbiased information on financial
solutions offered by the Bank, complying with all
applicable laws, regulations, corporate policies
and best practices. We deliver appropriate
knowledge to our clients for their financial
planning and ensure a strong, fair and consistent
consumer experience. For decades, AYA Bank
establishes a deed of trust with our creditors
such as deposit holders, businesses, and other
parties through our strong creditor’s right deals.

Responsible Lending: We act carefully and
responsibly at all times to ensure borrower’s

affordability,
conditions and support a borrower if they

transparency of terms and

experience repayment difficulties. Our lending
policyfollowtheguidelinessetoutbytheregulator
and formalized responsible lending guidelines.

Transparent Marketing: We promote

products, services and the company in

a transparent manner ensuring that no
advertisements are misleading, inaccurate or
misrepresent products, services, or terms and
activities are in conformity with all applicable
laws, regulations and comply with the company’s

marketing advertising guidelines.

Financial Inclusion: We provide financial
solutionsand servicestomeetthe evolving needs
of vulnerable, marginalized, underrepresented
and under resourced groups including small-
and medium-sized businesses, NGOs, INGOs
and women, minorities, veterans, people with
disabilities. A wide range of banking products
and services are accessible by individuals and
businessesatan affordable termsand conditions
and the Bank will not knowingly undertake
activities that would disproportionally harm any

group.

To ensure adequacy and effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control systems, both financial
and nonfinancial auditing practices are in
place. AYA Bank is audited under International
Standards of Auditing (ISA) by a big-four
international firm, Deloitte from year 2016 to
2019 and by a leading local audit firm, Win Thin
& Associates from year 2020 to date. To enhance
control mechanism, a global management
consulting firm was engaged to analyze and
provide professional advice on the Bank's non-

financial data.

AYA Bank have always ensure to promote
responsible business practices by delivering
on our purpose and striving to be a good
corporate citizen. With a long term sustainable
development as our ambition, the Bank continue
to further strengthen its governance, risk and
compliance structure as a measure to ensure
balance and sustain growth.
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MESSAGE FROM
FOUNDER CHAIRMAN

Dear Valued Clients, Shareholders, and Esteemed Partners,
As Founder and Chairman of AYA Bank PCL, | thank you for your interest in our bank.

We are living in an era of profound and rapid change, where the financial sector is evolving at an
unprecedented pace. Faced with this dynamic environment, our journey since inception has been
one of perpetual transformation, aligned with our commitment to serving you with exceptional
financial products and services.

At AYA Bank, we understand that our growth is intrinsically linked with the progress of our customers
and the broader community we serve. We are steadfast in our goal to elevate Myanmar’s banking
sector to international standards and provide our customers with world-class banking solutions, all
while nurturing a culture of transparency, trust, and innovation.

We have made significant strides in integrating digital technologies into our services, fostering an
ecosystem where technology and human ingenuity converge. Our continued investments in digital
banking serve to provide you with an enhanced, seamless banking experience, always at your
fingertips.

Looking ahead, we anticipate numerous opportunities and challenges. However, we remain confident
in our robust strategy, the agility of our team, and our collective capability to navigate these changing
times. Your unwavering support motivates us to strive for excellence continually.

On behalf of AYA Bank, | express my sincere gratitude to our customers for their loyalty, our
shareholders for their trust, and our employees for their hard work and dedication. Without you,
our success would not be possible.

| invite you to explore our website further and | more about our diverse offerings. | assure
you that AYA Bank will continue to uphold its commitment to providing reliable, innovative, and

customer-centric financial solutions.

Thank you for banki

Zaw Zaw
Founder
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MESSAGE FROM
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Greetings! -

On behalf of the members of the Board of Directors and myself, it is with great pleasure that | welcome you
to our new and improved website this year through which we aim to deliver important informaﬁn and

announcements, as well as our dedicated services.

Since the Bank’s inception in July 2010, it has grown as one of the leading commercial banks in Myanmar
and making significant contribution to national economy. The Bank has been continuously improving and

consolidating its credibility in the financial sector by playing a larger and diversified role.

In 2020, we celebrated our tenth anniversary. These first ten years represent years of growthand extraordinary

r

results which have allowed us to secure a top position in the banking sector. Our Bank has 262 branches

across the country, reflected in the lives of 6200 staff members and over three million customers. S

Something never changes is our clear vision and long-standing commitment to serving the customers that
paves the way for our successful journey over the past years and makes us one of the fastest-growing financial
institutions in Myanmar. It was also this clear vision that led us to an important milestone in 2022, which is
the transformation from a private owned commercial bank to a commercial bank public company limited.
This would not have been possible without strong support from our shareholders but more impoma;tly the

dedication of the Bank’s BOD and management. o

We have extended our services to our valued customers, partners, employees, and comr
commitment to turn our prime motto “Your Trusted Partner” into reality. Therefore, th‘
working towards becoming First Choice for all, with its philosophy of superior customer service at the core.
Our accomplishments continue to accumulate while we remain focused on providing better banking services

to our valued customers.

We have already introduced our own ATM Service, VISA card, Master Card, JCB Card, Internet Banking, Mobile
Banking, Remittance Service, Bancassurance, AYA Pay and other comprehensive range of competitive financial
service and products to improve efficiency and effectiveness of our Banking Services. We are working to set up
Agent Banking station and SME Centers in prime locations to ensure our presence closer to our customers. We
continued to strengthen our position in the SME and Micro enterprise customer segment, and, in particular,

with enterprises that are women-led and women-connected.

Customer centricity has always been at the core of our business development strategy. It is our constant
endeavor to innovate, in order to provide a state-of-the-art digital solution to provide enhanced convenience.
The Bank’s digital platforms have transformed over the years to provide best-in-class seamless digital journeys.
They are designed to on-board new customers, offer data-driven personalized solutions, and provide self-

service and value-added features.

\
;
We have obse 2022-23 where overall digital
transactio aded our core banking system to

The sustainability agenda has bée’n ;a:dbpted as the Bank embarks on achieving high ambitions in years
ahead. An ambitious long-term charter has been mapped to embed environmental, social and governance
(ESG) Standards to Bank’s core business operations. The achievements of the past and well-planned growth
strategy have given us the confidence to grow and prosper in the coming years with utmost satisfaction from

all concerned.

Finally, | express my sincere thanks and gratitude to our customers, patrons and well-wishers for the enormous
support, patronization, and cooperation. | hope this website will help you to discover more about our AYA
Bank PCL.

Khin Saw Oo
Executive Chairman, AYA Bank PCL
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AYA Bank has established four strategic goals which constitute the framework for the Bank's strategic

direction that has proven its worth over the years:

(1) For Customers

To achieve high level of customer satisfaction by,
(a)

courteous service
(b)

and services
(c)

of reach and delivery channels
(d)

enabler for all customer service endeavors

Providing honest, efficient and

Offering a full range of products

Providing easy accessibility in terms

Employing technology as the
We make a difference in the areas we operate by

serving our customers fairly and responsibly.

We are committed to helping individuals as
well as business owners and entrepreneurs by
offering personalized guidance and advice at
scale to make better financial decisions and build

financial wellness and resilience.

We have a single, simple purpose - building the
customer-centric culture - which is formulated as

one of our core values.

We use our expertise to seize opportunities for
our customers.

We invest in a robust digital experience for our
customers.
We accelerate action on financial inclusion

to connect rural Myanmar to mainstream

banking.

(2) For Community
To be a good corporate citizen and build long
term sustainable and active engagement with

the community we serves

We demonstrate our values and communicate
with the public about how we operate and the
choices we make, to ensure a sustainable future.

We are one of the signatory companies of the
UN Global Compact (UNGC) and adhere to the
UNGC Principles into our practices, policies, and
operations by strengthening the areas of human
rights, labor, environment and anti-corruption.

We recognize the need to give back to our
communities and those residing in them.

We establish ‘Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy’ and promote activities that generate
valuestoallinterest groups (customers, suppliers,
employees, shareholders, business partners,
stakeholders, environment and society) in the
context of a socially responsible culture that is
reflected in the implementation of a sustainable
business strategy.
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(3) For Staff
To ensure a highly competent and dedicated
workforce by implementing transparent policies,
and fostering staff well-being and goodwill
create a

We committed to better

workplace where all genders have equal rights,

are

responsibilities and opportunities.

We have received the globally recognized EDGE
Certificate for Gender Equality awarded by
Business Coalition for Gender Equality (BCGE)
Association.

We adopt the business code of ethics to outline
employee conducton ethics, values, environment,
diversity, and employee respect and customer

14 | Annual Report 2022 - 2023

service.

We expect our staff to follow the highest
standards, both in work undertaken and in
general behaviour, steered by corporate policies.

We create a clear workplace health and safety
program to protect employees and prevent
accidentsandinjuries. Thiswill also help to ensure
we are compliant with government legislation on
health and safety.

We organize learning and development programs
to enhance their skills to go above and beyond.
We initiate flexible working hours for staff joining

part time education programs.




(4) For Shareholders
To build sustained shareholder value through
standards of

rapid growth international

governance, risk and compliance

Our Board of
management team work together to ensure we

Directors and executive
are in compliance with laws and regulations, as
well as to provide guidance for sound decision-
making and accountability.

We uphold high standards

and

of corporate

governance ensure to meet our
responsibilities to stakeholders.

We identify and manage areas of potential risk
and to safeguard the assets of the Bank and its

shareholders.

We the

customers and employees in a well-balanced

serve interests of shareholders,

manner, now and in the future.

We take a long-term view of how we create
value, and we're committed to constructive
and meaningful communications with our

shareholders.

We set transparency and commitment to
shareholders as a priority and pay special
attention to building trust with them.

We provide accessible, transparent and accurate
information, in strict compliance with duties to

inform shareholders.
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2 july
Obtained Banking License from the Central Bank of Myanmar

14 July
Registered as a Private Company Limited by Shares

11 August
Established AYA Bank Ltd. and opened its first branch in Nay Pyi Taw

)

\

24 October
Obtained Money Changer License from the Central Bank of Myanmar

8 November
The first Bank to implement a Centralized Core Banking System

21 November
Launched ATM operations

25 November
Obtained Authorised Dealer License from the Central Bank of Myanmar

23 December
Obtained Money Transfer Service License from the Central Bank of Myanmar /

\

2 February
Launched Maybank Money Express Service

9 July
Obtained approval for Foreign Currency Account, SWIFT Telegraphic Transfer
and Letter of Credit (LC) from the Central Bank of Myanmar

17 August
Became member of United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) with commitments
in areas of human rights, labour, environment and anti-corruption

14 September
Became member of Myanmar Payment Union (MPU) /
23 February \

Launched AYA Q-Remit Money Transfer Service

4 June
Signed with Western Union Financial Services Inc. for Money Transfer Service

11 June
Obtained Principal License from VISA Payment Network

1 July
Obtained Principal License from MasterCard Payment Network

September
Received ‘Best Private Bank Myanmar’ award from World Finance /
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31 March
Launched AYA World Travel Card (Prepaid Card)

21 May
Reached AYA total deposit ONE TRILLION

17 June
Obtained approval for AYA i-Banking Service from the Central Bank of Myanmar

27 June
Launched AYA i-Banking Service

July

* Received ‘Banker of the Year 2014’ from the Myanmar Times

* Received ‘Global Banking & Finance Review Award 2014’ for Fastest Growing
Retail Bank in Myanmar, 2014

* Received ‘Global Banking & Finance Review Award 2014’ for Most Innovative
Banking Services (AYA i-Banking) Myanmar, 2014

September

* Received ‘Best Private Bank Myanmar’ award from World Finance
* Received ‘Best Retail Bank Myanmar’ award from World Finance

* Set up administrative head office at ROWE building

31 December
Opened AYA 100th Branch in Yangon Division /

\

January
Set up Data Center which incorporates cutting-edge information technology
infrastructure and networking equipment

16 January
Launched m-Banking to access financial services 24/7 from customers’ mobile
device

26 May
Launched AYA Royal Banking to provide exclusive financial solutions for premium
customers

2 july
Collaborated with OCBC Bank for international transfer

15 July
Launched ‘Bill Payment Service' in collaboration with Yangon City Development
Committee (YCDCQ)

September

* Obtained ‘Best Private Bank, Myanmar' 2015 by World Finance

* Obtained ‘Best Banking Group, Myanmar’ 2015 by World Finance

* Obtained ‘Most Sustainable Bank, Myanmar’ 2015 by World Finance

Received ‘Myanmar Highest Tax Payer Award’ for including in top 10 large tax
payers for the tax assessment year 2013-2014

31 December
Launched AYA Credit Card to provide customers a convenient way of borrowing
money

)

18 | Annual Report 2022 - 2023



1 April \

Firstinstitution in Myanmar to adopt full compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)

28 July
Launched MPU-UPI Co-Brand Prepaid Card

16 August
Launched AYA-JCB-MPU Co-Brand Prepaid Card

17 September
Launched JICA Two Step Loan for SMEs

October

* Obtained ‘Best Private Bank, Myanmar’ 2016 from World Finance

* Obtained ‘Best Banking Group, Myanmar’ 2016 from World Finance

* Obtained ‘Most Sustainable Bank, Myanmar’ 2016 from World Finance

Received ‘Myanmar Highest Tax Payer Award’ for including in top 10 large tax
payers for the tax assessment year 2014-2015

November
Launched Education Loan for students attending at private institutions

31 December
Opened AYA 200th Branch at River View Building, Yangon /

2 June \

Partnered with Misys for the Bank's transformation program to digitalize
operations and improve overall efficiency

14 November
Introduced First Corporate Credit Card in Myanmar ‘AYA Universal Corporate
MPU-JCB Co-Branded Card’

25 November
Launched ‘Automobile Hire Purchase Loan’ to introduce customers with the
easiest and convenient financial plan to purchase vehicles

Received ‘Myanmar Highest Tax Payer Award’ for including in top 20 large tax
payers for the tax assessment year 2015-2016 /

Launched ‘Home Loan’ that customers can afford to own your desired apartment\
or condominium or landed house.

Used CBM Net's Customer Credit Transfer(CCT) function, an upgraded payment
system for easy and fast transfer

Launched ‘Agriculture Loan’ to finance SMEs in the agriculture sector
Launched ‘MFI Lending’ to provide microfinance to clients
Received ‘Best Domestic Bank’ award from Asiamoney

Received ‘Myanmar Highest Tax Payer Award'’ for including in top 20 large
tax payers for the tax assessment year 2016-2017 /
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Launched new deposit products; ‘AYA Su-Buu’ designed for payroll customers
and ‘Business Account Call Deposit’ designed for large corporates

Introduced ‘DBS to AYA Remit (Inward), a convenient way to send money
Received ‘Best Bank for CSR’ award from Asiamoney

Received ‘Best Bank for SMEs’ award from Asiamoney

Received globally recognized EDGE certificate for ‘Gender Equality’ in
working environment

Received ‘Myanmar Highest Tax Payer Award’ for including in top 10 large
tax payers for the tax assessment year 2017-2018

Launched digital wallet solution, ‘AYA Pay’ for convenient payments and
transfers

Opened 265th branch in Kachin State

10 Aug 2020
Received ‘Myanmar Highest Tax Payer Award’ for including in top 10 large tax
payers for the tax assessment year 2018-2019

Upgraded to Core Banking System Essence 7

2 AN AN

March

Reached ONE MILLION customers for AYA Pay digital wallet solution

First Bank in Myanmar to launch the international remittance saving account
“Ngwe Toe Mae-Shwe O”

October - November

* Organized ‘AYA Banker Quiz' learning and competition program for staff
from all levels of the bank to build up internal relations and improve industrial
knowledge

December

+ Conducted ‘AYA Express Zay' event to offer visitors one-stop digital
banking services.

* Incorporated as Public Company Limited (PCL) to create long-term

growth J
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February
Signed MOU between AYA Bank and UMFCCI on development of MSMEs
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U Zaw Zaw

Founder and Chairman
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Zaw Zaw is a successful business magnate and Founder and
Chairman of AYA Bank. He is graduated from the University
of Yangon with a major in Mathematics. With a combination
of overseas experiences and personal strength, U Zaw Zaw
founded Max Myanmar Company in 1993 and AYA Bank in
2010. His achievements include steering the management
and growth of AYA Financial Group and Max Myanmar Group
of Companies, major conglomerates in Myanmar. He is an
established and well-connected entrepreneur and business

leader in Myanmar, with 30 years of management experience.

He is currently serving as the President of the Myanmar Football Federation since 2005 and Senior
Vice President of Asean Football Confederation (AFC). He relentlessly provides both funding and
effort for the development of soccer in Myanmar. As a firm believer of contributing to the society
and helping the needy, he has supported various philanthropic causes through the Ayeyarwady
Foundation, including the Yankin Children Hospital, Ayeyarwady Covid-19 Center, and a wide range
of corporate social responsibility initiatives nationwide.
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Daw Khin Saw Oo

Executive Chairman
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

Daw Khin Saw Oo, a veteran banker of over 40 years of
experience in monetary and financial sector, is the Executive
Chairman and a member of the Board of Directors of AYA
Bank. She held the position of Vice-Chairman since she joined
the AYA Bank in 2018. She is one of the driving forces of
AYA Bank’s move towards a more accountable, responsible,
and transparent organization. Her visionary leadership and
zealous efforts resulted her in re-designation as the Executive
Chairman of AYA Bank in May 2021.

She was formerly, the Deputy Governor of the Central Bank of Myanmar and retired in July 2017. She
had the professional experience as a Technical Assistant to the Executive Director in the South-East
Asia Voting Group Office, International Monetary Fund (IMF). She had the vast exposure to numerous
ASEAN and International financial platforms during her Deputy-Governorship at the Central Bank of
Myanmar. She has been selected as the Chairperson of the Myanmar Banks Association for two

years term starting from May 2021.

She holds a master's degree in International Affairs (Economic Policy Management) from Columbia
University of New York, U.S.A. She got her bachelor's degree of Economics (Mathematical Statistics)
and a Diploma in Economic Planning from the Institute of Economics, Yangon.
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U Than Zaw

Vice-Chairman
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Than Zaw is a member of the Board of Directors of AYA Bank
and presently holds the position of Vice-Chairman. He was
appointed as the Managing Director to AYA Bank from 2011 to
2013. During his tenure, he has led the fledging Bank to grow
its brand and network in Myanmar. He also heads AYA SOMPO
Insurance as a Vice-Chairman. U Than Zaw's vast experience
includes eight-year tenure with the Olympics Committee as a
Treasurer and another two years as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Myanmar Football Federation. He is instrumental in
strengthening systems and procedures by taking initiatives. U
Than Zaw has been giving the guidance at Board level regards to policies, practices to ensure the
bank in full compliance with stipulated laws and regulations.
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Vice-Chairman
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

Daw Khin Ma Ma is a member of the Board of Directors
of AYA Bank since 2010 and presently holds the position of
Vice-Chairman. She has been appointed as Deputy Managing
Director in 2011, Executive Director in 2013 and currently
re-appointed as Vice-Chairman in 2022 due to her strong
commitment and constant demonstration on effectiveness
of the Board and Bank's strategic direction. She obtained a

bachelor’s degree in Science from University of Yangon.

| ( d; .
Daw Khin Ma Ma brings along with her a wealth of cross- sector experience gained through her
17 years in the service industry. With her passion for delivering quality service, she has improved
services providing in all branches to a higher level. She plays a pivotal role in human resources
management, provides guidance for talent strategy, and leads in all aspects of human resources and

talent management.
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U Myint Zaw

Chief Executive Officer
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Myint Zaw is a member of the Board of Directors of AYA
Bank. He has been appointed as Managing Director in 2017,
re-appointed as Senior Managing Director in 2021 and Chief
Executive Officer in 2022 for his growth initiatives, leadership
abilities, and managing the strategic direction of the Bank. He
graduated with B-Econ (Economics) and received a Master of
Public Administration (MPA) as well. He held various senior
positions in Advertising and Marketing for well-established
and reputable international and local companies in the private
sector.

His professional background comes from over 25 years of working experience from different
industries in Agriculture, Advertising, Commodity Future Market, Beverage and Soft Drink Industry,
Telecommunications and Education. Before joining AYA Bank, U Myint Zaw founded Professional
Marketers Association (PMA) and developed Ground Solution Company that provided management
and consultancy services.

His strong knowledge of marketing and operations in theory and practice rendered invaluable service

for the bank. He has proven track record of delivering business impact and optimization of marketing
that brings up sustainable and a strong corporate culture and promoting the service quality.
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Daw Lwin Lwin Aung

Chief Financial Officer
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

Daw Lwin Lwin Aung is the Chief Financial Officer of AYA Bank
and is the member of the Bank’s Executive Committee. In her
capacity as Chief Financial Officer, she is responsible for the
overall financial management of the Bank including financial
reporting, budgetary control and performance monitoring,
statutory audit, implementation of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and strategy implementation while
working closely with senior management. She leads the Finance
& Accounts Team and works closely with Treasury Team in

Financial and Treasury related functions respectively.

Prior to that, she was a Chief Financial Officer of a SGX Listed Company in Singapore and played a
key role in Group's Financial Affairs that includes Financial Planning & Reporting, compliance with
SGX regulations, Internal Control & Risk Management, Fund raising including ordinary & preference
share issuance, Merger and Acquisition and Investor Relations. She also held other roles in Senior
Finance positions in Singapore. In addition to typical Finance related expertise, her expertise covers
Business Valuation, Merger & Acquisition, Financial Due Diligence, Initial Public Offering (IPO) and

Investment and Divestment activities.

She holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Nanyang Technological University
(Singapore), a professional qualification from Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK)
and a Bachelor of Arts in English. She is also a member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants (CA Singapore).
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Daw Jasmine Thazin Aung

Managing Director (Corporate Business)
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

Daw Jasmine Thazin Aung is the Managing Director - Head of
Corporate Banking of AYA Bank and Chief Executive Director
of Max Global Investment. In her capacity with AYA Bank, she
takes charge of Corporate Banking Business and Financial
Institutions establishment. She is a member of the Executive
Committee of AYA Bank.

In addition to her MD - Head of Corporate Banking role, she
also co-heads and takes several roles with AYA Financial Group
; (“AFG"). With AFG, she takes charge of AYA Trust Securities
Co., Ltd as the Managing Director for Capital Market Activities including securities brokerage and
Corporate Finance Transactions, and she is also the member of the Board of Directors of AYA SOMPO

Insurance Co., Ltd. From her capacity with Corporate Finance activities, she oversees and monitors
diversified investment portfolios that includes existing, on-going, and new business ventures of
Chairman’s investment office as well new Mergers and Acquisitions ["M&A”], Joint Ventures with
Potential Partners for AYA Financial Group's entities and/or investment in new ventures.

She holds a master’s degree in Business Administration (Corporate Finance) from Nottingham Trent
University. Before joining AYA Financial Group and Max Global Investment, she was a PwC Advisory
Partner and local Lead Director/Partner for PwC Myanmar. She has over 16 years of professional
experiences including 11.5 years with PwC Singapore and PwC Myanmar for audit, financial advisory
and consulting and 5 years in the Maritime service industry in Myanmar.
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U Nyein Chan Soe Win

Managing Director (Digital Banking)
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Nyein Chan Soe Win is the Managing Director for ‘Digital
Banking' of AYA Bank and is a member of the Bank’s Executive
Committee. He is responsible for managing the roadmap and
defining the customer experience for Digital channels where
he plays a visible role of driving and delivering the Bank's
digital payments agenda. Over the years, he has been the main
strategic driver for digital wallet application namely ‘AYA Pay'.

He leads and runs the digital innovation across the bank with
an aspiration to propel AYA in becoming a premier digital bank.
He has strong leadership, management and business development skills with solid experiences
in start-ups, entrepreneurship, payments, FinTech, emerging market, e-commerce and IT service

management.

U Nyein Chan Soe Win holds a master’s degree from Nanyang Technology University. Prior to joining
AYA Bank, he played the role of IT professional in Singapore for one of the world's leading energy
company and advanced his career as a Managing Director of Singapore based regional payment
company where he transformed digital payments in Myanmar, remarkably enablement of digital
payments, launch of first virtual prepaid card and the launch of first mobile banking with QR payment.
He also co-founded the first blockchain Omni Channel Digital Commerce Platform in Myanmar and
became CEO and CTO.
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U Ko Ko Oo

Managing Director (Governance, Risk Management and

Compliance)
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Ko Ko Oo, co-chairperson of Board, Risk and Compliance
Committee, has been appointed as Managing Director of
Governance, Risk Management and Compliance in 2022 for
his strong strategic skills as well as effective implementation
for risk, compliance and governance. He joined AYA Bank in
2010 since its inception and had taken various positions and
responsibilities. He became Deputy Managing Director in 2014
and has been appointed as Senior Chief Risk and Compliance
Officer in 2018. He studied Master of Public Administration
and brought in his expertise of Strategic Studies and International relations.

He has developed and implemented the Risk and Compliance Management System for the bank
business and support functions. He is managing all aspects of risk to the organization, employees,
clients, reputation, assets, andinterests of stakeholders. U Ko Ko Oo possesses a powerful commitment
to his task. Besides his present responsibility, he cooperatively managed the Bank’s administrative
matters and Bank Branches Network for new branch opening across Myanmar.
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U Minn Wint Oo

Managing Director (Banking Operations and Retail Banking)
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Minn Wint Oo is the Managing Director for “Banking
Operations and Retail Banking” of AYA Bank and came on
board in 2011. He is a member of the Executive Committee,
Asset-Liability Committee, Credit Committee, Product and
Business Development Committee, and IT and Digitalization
Steering Committee. As the Managing Director of Banking
Operations and Retail Banking, he is responsible for daily
banking operations, ensuring efficiency of the Bank, necessary
to support the business objectives, leading more than 4500
employees who deliver banking services to clients across AYA
Bank’s 265 branches in the country. He also oversees the teams handling centralized operations,

currency operations as well as branch operations systems support, and retail banking.

During his early tenure at AYA, he held the post as Chief Technology Officer, the strategic founder and
executive decision maker with regards to the technological advances of AYA Bank. He was the main
driving force for the bank’s whole IT systems and infrastructure, including, but not limited to, Data
Centers, Network Architecture, Software Development, and Information Security. He is responsible
for outlining the bank’s technological vision, implementing technological strategies, developing policy
and procedures, and ensuring that the technological resources are aligned with business goals.

He graduated from Yangon Technological University and continued specializationin IT industry. Along
with strong technical knowledge and expertise in banking, he is the right talent to take the bank to
its next level. He is the core person in driving and reinforcing digital transformation of the bank,
integrating digital technology into all areas of the bank, optimizing operations and value delivery to
customers. With his technological background as an added advantage, he is able to take AYA Bank to
the next level of Banking for the ever-changing customer centric economic environment.
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U Nay Lin Htut

Chief Credit Officer
Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (AYA Bank PCL)

U Nay Lin Htut is the Chief Credit Officer of AYA Bank and a
member of the Bank's Executive Committee. He has been
with the Bank for more than 9 years. In his current role,
he is responsible for credit underwriting, assessment,
administration, monitoring, recovery, and reporting activities
of all credit portfolio of the Bank. He is also the member of the
Credit Committee, and Assets and Liability Committee.

Prior to hisrole in Credit, he spent 8 years in Corporate Banking
Unit, heading Domestic Corporate Banking Department and

subsequently assigned as a Deputy Head of Corporate Banking Unit whereby he was responsible for
the management of the corporate client’s business portfolio which involves profitable partnerships,
improving credit quality of the portfolio and developing transactional business through enhanced
service experiences. In this role, he has extensive experience to accommodate corporate customers’
business needs and banking needs, specialized in corporate lending and thoroughly familiar with

credit assessment under various industries including infrastructure financing.

He is one of the pioneer members of Credit Bureau Business Committee and Myanmar Credit Bureau
(MMCB) since 2019 and was instrumental in setting up system readiness, pricing mechanism and
reporting format. U Nay Lin Htut holds a bachelor's degree in Business Management (Finance) from
RMIT (Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology) University in 2012 and completed his Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) Level 1in 2019.
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Shareholding Information

AYA Bank is organized independently as a stand-alone business and has been operating with its own
culture, management structure, business structure and legal structure. It is incorporated with shares

owned by following shareholders:

Board
Members

No. of Shares Holding %

U Zaw Zaw o 1,036,000 74.00 %
Daw Htay Htay Khaing Q 170,000 12.14 %
U Soe Tint 63,000 4.50 %

U Ohn Kyaw 63,000 4.50 %

Daw San San 34,000 2.428 %
U Than Zaw o 34,000 2.428 %
Daw Khin Saw Oo V) 30 0.002%
Daw Khin Ma Ma v/ 30 0.002%
U Myint Zaw v/ 30 0.002%
Total 1,400,090 100%
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Sustainability

Our Commitment for Sustainable Strategy
We are committed to create a better tomorrow not only for Myanmar
Banking industry but also for our society; hence we keep embedding

“Sustainability” at our heart. It is integrated into every part of our

business, from Bank's operations to our corporate culture and
communications.

We are obligated to adopt a set of principles while implementing
Bank's strategies that will mainly focus on treating the internal and
external customers and communities that we serve, using natural
resources responsibly, and for long-term investment. It is very
important to consider how our business practices impact to others
environmentally, culturally, and socially. Only a proper balance
between aspects of environmental, economic, and social could only
lead to long-term sustainable development.

Furthermore, culture is essential in building sustainability right across
the Bank’s operations and we practice the principle of “setting the
tone at the top”. Our strong leadership and an engaged corporate
culture encourage sustainable business practices throughout the
Bank.
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Board Committees

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

BOARD RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

BOARD NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

Executive Asset-Liability Credit HR

Committe Committee Committee Committee

Board of Directors

Board is the highest authority within the structure of the Bank and the Board of directors has ultimate
responsibility for the bank’s business strategy and financial soundness, organizational structure,
governance framework and practices, risk management and compliance obligations. The Board
is chaired by Founder and Chairman of the Bank and comprising nine members including three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with diverse backgrounds and expertise. The Board ensures
compliance with the regulatory and legal framework, and the existence of an effective and productive
relationship with key stakeholders. For dedication and best governance, the Board has appointed
numbers of committees for designated areas.

The Board of directors play a critical role in the Bank's success. In order to make sure every director
is on board with the Bank’s goal, and the entire Board is in sync with the Bank’s mission, various
training programs including orientation programs are provided. The new director orientation
program will bring them up to speed on the Bank, its competitive environment, strategies, and board

processes.
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Product and

Bussiness

Development

Committee

IT and
‘ Health and
Purchasing Digitalization CSR
_ ‘ Safety
Committee Steering Committee _
Committee
Committee

Roles and Responsibilities of Board of Directors
In discharging their responsibilities, the Board of Directors must take into account the legitimate
interests of depositors, shareholders, and other relevant stakeholders. The responsibilities of the
Board of Directors shall include -

1. Keeping up with material changes in the bank’s business and external environment as well
as act necessary changes in a timely manner to protect the long-term interests of the bank.

2. Overseeing the development and approval of the bank’s business objectives and strategies
and monitoring their implementation.

3. Playing a leading role in establishing the bank’s corporate culture and values

4. Overseeing implementation of the bank’s governance framework and review periodically
thatitremains appropriate in the light of material changes to the bank’s size, complexity, geographical
footprint, business strategy, markets, and regulatory requirements.

5. Establishing along with bank’s officers, the bank's risk appetite, taking into account the
competitive and regulatory landscape in the banking industry and the bank’s long-term interests,
risk exposure and ability to manage risk effectively.
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6. Approving the policy and overseeing the implementation of key policies and rules pertaining

to the bank’s capital adequacy assessment process, capital and liquidity plans, compliance policies

and obligations, and the internal control system.

7. Overseeing the integrity, independence and effectiveness of the bank’s policies and

procedures for reporting fraud and other illegal activities

8. Overseeing the development of and approving the bank’s policy on transactions with related

parties; and overseeing the compliance of the bank with the Financial Institutions Law, regulations

and directives issued there under.

Role of Committees

1. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is led by an Executive
Chairperson of the Bank and serves as steering
committee for the rest of the Board. It has the
powertofacilitatedecision-makingbetweenboard
meetings or in urgent and crisis circumstances.
The Executive Committee reports to the Board
and is responsible for ensuring that the Board's
policies and guidance are implemented in
daily operations, and good corporate practices
are maintained. In addition to this, the role of
the executive committee includes monitoring
the ethics policies, human resources, security
guidelines, quality management, sound financial
management and the Bank's compliance with
regulations.

2. Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee is chaired by
an Independent Non-Executive Director and
comprised of members from various areas such
as risk and compliance, legal, finance and audit.
The Board Audit Committee has been providing
continuous advice to the Board with regards to
the effectiveness and independence of the Bank’s
internalauditfunction, the overallrisk governance
framework and internal control system. Audit
Committee is responsible to ensure that senior
management is taking necessary corrective
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actions in a timely manner to address control
weaknesses, non-compliance with policies, laws
and regulations, and other problems identified
by auditors and other control functions.

3. Board Risk and Compliance Committee
The Board Risk and Compliance Committee
(BRCC) is headed by Vice Chairperson of the
AYA Bank. BRCC assists the Board to achieve
effective corporate governance and oversight
responsibilities in relation to risk and compliance
management strategy, framework and risk and
compliance management function of the Bank.
BRCC oversees the policy of risk and compliance,
Bank's

tolerance, and ensures that risk assessments are

determines risk appetite, and risk
performed regularly and monitor the whole risk

and compliance process.

4. Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director and the main role of the committee is to
set succession and compensation policies in the
Bank, identify directors and Senior Management
in accordance with the criteria laid down and



recommend their appointment to the Board. The
committee is responsible for the overall oversight
of the compensation system for the entire
bank. In addition, the committee shall regularly
monitor and reviews outcomes to ensure that
the bank-wide remuneration system is operating
as intended.

5. Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources committee is chaired
by the Vice Chairperson of the Bank and
responsible for assisting the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities for human resources
related policies and strategies. The committee
is responsible for employees’ compensation,
benefits, and performance management, and
to ensure that the Bank is following government
laws, international and local best practices.
The committee’s objective is to retain qualified
and productive employees, to ensure human
resources risks are appropriately identified and
mitigated, andto create an attractive environment
for existing and prospective employees of AYA
Bank.

6. Assets and Liabilities Committee

The Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO),
chaired by the Executive Chairperson, is
responsible for overseeing the management of
the bank’s assets and liabilities. ALCO provides
an important oversight for effectively evaluating
on-and off-balance-sheet risk for the bank. One
of the objectives is to ensure adequate liquidity
while managing the spread between the interest
income and interest expense. Members also
consider investments and operational risk.
ALCO members' responsibilities typically include
managing market risk tolerances, establishing
appropriate management information systems,

and reviewing and approving the bank’s liquidity

and funds management policies. This includes
developing and maintaining a contingency
funding plan, reviewing immediate funding
needs and sources, and determining liquidity
risk exposures to adverse scenarios with varying

probability and severity.

7. Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank and is the decision-
making body for approval of credit facilities in the
Bank. The purpose of the committee is to oversee
the credit and lending strategies, objectives of
the bank, the credit risk management of the
Bank, reviewing the credit policies and the quality
of and performance of the entire Bank's credit
portfolio, and regular assessment of the quality
of risk assets in the Bank.

8.Product and Business Development
Committee

The Product
Committee is led by the Chief Executive Officer of

and Business Development
the Bank and is comprised of Head of Business
Units and Product Development Department.
The committee is responsible for overseeing
and managing the process and procedures for
product design and development in compliance
withthe Bank's strategy andregulatory guidelines.
That includes reviewing product performance
and competitiveness in the current market for its
continued relevance and justification.

9. Purchasing Committee

The Purchasing Committee is managed by the
Vice Chairperson of the Bank and is established
review and evaluation of

for independent

purchasing documentation. The committee is
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obliged to decide the most appropriate supplier
or service provider for the Bank and ultimately
responsible for the successful outcome of the
evaluation process. The committee members
must be in no way related to or associated with
any of the suppliers being evaluated.

10. IT and Digitalization Steering
Committee

The IT & Digitalization and Steering Committee
is led by the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank.
The primary objective is to effectively manage IT
resources and implement IT Governance to align
with the strategic direction of the Board. This
includes building, acquiring, and implementing
the required infrastructure, applications, and
servicesforthe Bank.The secondary objectiveisto
support IT projects as defined by the committee.
The committee is responsible for evaluating and
assessing the performance and compliance of all
the IT related processes, practices, and activities.

11. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is
chaired by Independent Non-Executive Director
and obliged to define the strategy of the Bank’s
corporate social responsibilities to implement
effectively and oversee the approach to be in
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line with the Bank’s CSR pillars. The committee
determine from time to time and recommend
variousaspectsofcorporatesocialresponsibilities
including the Bank’s culture, employment issues,
health & safety, human rights, workforce diversity
&inclusion, the environment, community & social
investment, compliance with ethical trading
and business practices and other CSR-related
matters.

12. Health and Safety Committee

Thehealthandsafety committee (HSC)ismanaged
by the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. The
committee is formed to address concerns
related to occupational health and safety issues
that affect employees. This includes addressing
hazards in the workplace, responding the health
issues in pandemic efficiently, implementing
new safety and procedures, reviewing safety
training requirements. The purpose is to
create communication with employees and
management personnel to improve safety and
reduce hazards. The committee holds meetings
quarterly and discuss health and safety issues,
develop plans and procedures to resolve the
identified issues, recommend corrective actions
and evaluate the reports submitted to the

committee.



BOARD COMMITTEES
Committee meetings were conducted in budget year 2022-2023 as follows:

Meeting Title No. of Meetings
Board Committeet 11
Executive Committee 20
Board Audit Committee 11
Board Risk And Compliance Committee 7
Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee 3
Assets and Liabilities Committee 7
Credit Committee 11
HRC Committee 12
Product and Business Development Committee 6
Purchasing Committee 8
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 4
Health & Safety Committee 4

All board members require compulsory attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors if there is
no reasonable cause. Board members are required to attend at least 75% of all regularly scheduled
meetings. The Secretariat Section under Corporate Affairs Department organizes the management
calendar for the year and schedules the meeting of the Board of Directors at least 10 times a year
with the interval between two meetings not to exceed two months. During the financial year 2022-
2023, the board held 11 regular scheduled meetings and attended by all members of the board.
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COMPLIANCE



Compliance is a crucial function within AYA Bank, responsible for closely monitoring the Bank’s
financial services businesses to ensure they adhere to regulations and internal controls. The primary
objective of the compliance department is to measure and manage the risks faced by the bank while
protecting the interests of investors and depositors. By doing so, it aims to mitigate business risks
and combat financial crime effectively. Moreover, the compliance department identifies potential
risks that the bank may face and provides advice on how to prevent or address them.

To establish a strong compliance framework, AYA Bank has implemented a comprehensive approach,
policies, and functions that encompass fundamental principles, legal and regulatory compliance,
and financial reporting. These guidelines are followed by the board, management, and staff to
ensure consistent adherence to compliance standards. The independent compliance function serves
as a key component of the bank’s second line of defense, monitoring and verifying that the bank
operates with integrity and complies with applicable laws, regulations, and internal policies. Periodic
reviews of the compliance function’s effectiveness are conducted, which include assessing the bank’s
compliance with laws and regulations set by the Central Bank of Myanmar (CBM), as well as the
outcomes of management investigations and follow-ups on fraudulent acts or instances of non-
compliance. The department also examines any findings from regulatory agency examinations and
significant correspondences with such agencies.

The compliance function not only focuses on risk management but also acts as a point of contact
within the Bank for compliance queries from staff members. It provides guidance to employees on
the proper implementation of compliance measures. Key areas of focus for the compliance function
include preventing bribery, money laundering, country sanctions violations, ensuring fair business
practices with consumers, and addressing ethical issues that may pose reputational risks to the
Bank.
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To ensure effective compliance, the following key elements and steps are implemented:

Know Your Customer Policy:

AYA Bank has a comprehensive Customer
Acceptance Policy that takes into account
various factors such as customer types, activities,
associated accounts, and risk indicators.
This policy includes a detailed description of

customers based on their associated risks.

Customer Due Diligence Measures:

Customer Due Diligence is a vital process at
AYA Bank, involving a systematic procedure
to assess potential risks associated with doing
business with an organization or individual. This
includes verifying the identity of new customers,
establishing ownership structures, collecting
information about customer activities and
markets, and identifying other entities with which

a customer conducts business.

On-Going  Monitoring of
Transactions and Accounts:

High-Risk

A risk-based approach is employed to monitor
high-risk transactions or customers, specifically
targeting money laundering and terrorist
financing activities. By understanding the normal
and reasonable account activity of customers,
the bank can identify and investigate unusual or

suspicious patterns of activity.
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Reporting of Suspicious Transactions:

AYA Bank adheres to legal requirements and
promptly files suspicious transaction reports
when necessary. Designated officers within the
Bank report any detected suspicious transactions
or transactions believed to be related to criminal
activity based on reasonable grounds.

Reporting of Suspicious Transactions/
Record Keeping:

The detailed
suspicious transactions, along with relevant

Bank maintains records of
investigation details and decisions made. These
records are retained for the required period, in
accordance with the Bank's policy and regulatory
requirements.

Appointing Compliance Officers:

Compliance Officers are appointed in all

departments and branches of the Bank. Their
include and

responsibilities establishing

maintaining internal policies, procedures, and

compliance  manuals. Compliance Officers
play a crucial role in identifying and mitigating
noncompliance risks, both externally and

internally. They constantly reportto management
on the organization’s compliance with laws and
regulations and ensure that employees are
aware of their obligations to comply with internal
and external requirements.



Effective Risk and Compliance Training:

AYA Bank recognizes the dynamic nature of the
financialindustry and the need to stay updated on
emerging risks and regulations. The Bank designs
training programs to reduce risks, enhance
workforce efficiency, and ensure employees are
well-versed in banking sector developments.
Continuous training and seminars on risk and
compliance are provided to help employees
detect and report suspicious activities, including
predicate offenses to money laundering and
terrorist financing.

Independent Audits:

AYA Bank's Internal Audit Team plays a vital
role in proactively identifying and assessing
potential risks, weaknesses, and noncompliance
situations. They collaborate with all departments
and branches across the country to enforce
compliance and evaluate the effectiveness of
applying anti-money laundering and combating
the financing of terrorism (AML/CFT) guidelines
and relevant laws on an annual basis.

By diligently implementing these compliance
measures, AYA Bank aims to foster a culture of
integrity, maintain the trust of its customers and
stakeholders, and operate within the boundaries
of applicable laws and regulations.

Furthermore, we use our collective capacity
to foster partnership with colleagues for the
purposes of learning and growth. By developing
our employee at all levels, enabling the Bank
to build a strong succession pipeline of future
leaders.
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AYA SERVICES



Corporate and Commercial
Services

*Working Capital Financing

* Structured Trade and Commodity

Financing

* Machinery and Equipment Financing

* Project Financing

« Commercial and Industrial Property
Financing

+ Contract Financing

* Invoice Discounting

Banking

Transaction Banking Services

+ Cash Management

« Trade Finance Services and Supply
Chain Financing

* International Remittances

Investment Banking (AYA Trust -
subsidiary of AYA Financial Group)

« Underwriting

* Dealing

* Brokerage

* Advisory

Insurance (AYA Myanmar Insurance -
subsidiary of AYA Financial Group)

Life Insurance:
* Endowment Life Insurance
*+ Group Life Insurance
* Health Insurance
* Special Highway Travel Insurance

General Insurance:
* Cash-in Transit/ Cash-in-Safe
Insurance
« Comprehensive Motor Insurance
* Fire Insurance
* Marine Cargo/ Inland Transit
Insurance

Gold Special Counter Branch

e @ Yangon (25)

i B A\{A Bank | Shwe Bon Tha Branch

- W No (38), Ground Floor, Shwe
Bon Tha Street, Pa Pe” Tan Tsp,
Yangon Division.

01-387048, 01-387988

MDY (22) 26 Street
(Seiktaya Mahi
Compound)

(26) Street, Between Of (73x74),
Seiktara Mahi Compound,

Chan Aye Tharzan Township,
Mandalay Division.
02-2848034~35

Yangon (83) Ahlone
(River View)

Block No(3/B), Quarter No- 23
(G-1), Corner Of Strand Road &
Thit Taw Road, River View Point
Condomium, Ahlone Township,
Yangon Division.

01-2317891~95

Mawlamyaing (1) Branch
4/D, Kan Nar Road, Shwe Taung
Qtr, Mawlamyaing.

057-25944, 25945
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Small and Medium

Enterprises (SMEs) in AYA

AYA SME Banking provides SMEs with loans at appropriate
interest rates to reduce impediments in access to financing
for business expansion and procurement of machinery
and equipment. In addition, AYA SME Banking works with
INGOs such as Japan International Cooperation Agency
(JICA), United States Agency for International Development
(USAID)
International/Volunteers in  Overseas Cooperative
Assistance (ACDI/VOCA) to provide SMEs with technical
assistance, market linkages around the country for their

and Agricultural Cooperative Development

products, and grants for the promotion of local products for
local development beginning with production to consumer
outreach. Geographical coverage includes southern Shan
State, Mandalay Region, Ayeyarwady Region, Sagaing
Region and Kachin State.

Loans and other banking services available at Ayeyarwady
MSME Talk Show
sponsored by Bago Region Government. To promote

Bank were showcased at the
entrepreneurship among women, AYA SME Banking
participated in Entrepreneurship Support Initiative (ESI)
Program held at MICT Park and in MYANWEN Women
Entrepreneurship Program held at Novotel Yangon Maxand
provided financing assistance to women entrepreneurs.
Further, Myanmar Women Entrepreneurs’ Association
(MWEA) plans to work with the Ministry of Industry to select
over 250 women entrepreneurs for project training and
financial knowledge sharing to be organized in cooperation
with Korean experts. Subsequently, Ayeyarwady Bank will
provide loans and banking services to empower those
women entrepreneurs.
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In'This
Together

Bancassurance

Bancassurance Unit was implemented to make available
insurance products of insurance companies at bank
branches using the Bancassurance Distribution Channel,
bringing insurance products that contribute to a worry-free
life for the people are close at hand and accessible down to
the grassroots level. The Bancassurance Unit continuously
reviews the current sale of insurance services and works
with AYA SOMPO General Insurance Company and AlA Life
Insurance Company to offer value-added service at bank
branches for the satisfaction of the general public.

The staff of the bank branches are provided insurance
service training at the Head Office of AYA, AYASOMPO and
AlA and also at the bank branches in various towns around
Regions where Bancassurance operations have been set
up. Application training is also provided to enable efficient
use of the Bancassurance Application on the part of bank
branch staff. Weekly tripartite meetings are conducted
among AYA, AYA SOMPO and AIA, while Division Heads and
Zone Heads review the performance of bank branches, visit
bank branches and accompany the staff on their customer
calls to be up to date with the difficulties encountered in
the sale of insurance services. Various training formats
are used, including physical training, online training and
refresher training.

The Bancassurance Unit provided the general public with
enquiry services and sharing of general knowledge relating
to insurance at the “Women Entrepreneurship Program”
event on 9 December 2022, and at the AYA Express Fair
organized at the Novotel Hotel, offering insurance cover
to customers. In the coming years, the Bancassurance
Unit will continue expanding into new bank branches and
providing training to achieve target numbers.
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Correspondent Banks

CURRENCY: USD

No. BANK LOCATION SWIFT BIC
1 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK LIMITED SINGAPORE UOVBSGSG
2 OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED SINGAPORE OCBCSGSG
3 DBS BANK LTD SINGAPORE DBSSSGSG
4 MIZUHO BANK, LTD. SINGAPORE BRANCH SINGAPORE MHCBSGSG
5 BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ?S/’:IGLK(I\?I}; BKKBTHBK
6 KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 'II?Q’:IGLKSI}; KASITHBK

7 SIAM COMMERCIAL BANK PCL ?:/’:IGLESE SICOTHBK

8 KRUNG THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ?QEIGLE(N):; KRTHTHBK
9 MIZUHO BANK, LTD. TOKYO, JAPAN MHCBJPJT

CURRENCY: EUR

No. BANK LOCATION SWIFT BIC
1 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK LIMITED SINGAPORE UOVBSGSG
FRANKFURT,

2 UOVBSGSG GERMANY BHFBDEFF
CURRENCY: SGD

No. BANK LOCATION SWIFT BIC

1 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK LIMITED SINGAPORE UOVBSGSG

2 OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED SINGAPORE OCBCSGSG

3 DBS BANK LTD SINGAPORE DBSSSGSG
CURRENCY: JPY

1 MIZUHO BANK, LTD.

LOCATION

TOKYO, JAPAN

SWIFT BIC

MHCBJPJT
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CURRENCY: CNY

No. ‘ BANK ‘ LOCATION ‘ SWIFT BIC
1 OCBC WING HANG BANK (CHINA) LIMITED (FORMERLY OCBC BANK | SHANGHAI, CHINA OCBCCNSH
(CHINA) LIMITED) PRC
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (YANGON
2 YANGON, MYANMAR | ICBKMMMY
BRANCH)
CURRENCY: THB
No. ‘ BANK ‘ LOCATION ‘ SWIFT BIC
BANGKOK,
1 BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED THAILAND BKKBTHBK
BANGKOK,
2 KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED THAILAND KASITHBK
BANGKOK,
3 SIAM COMMERCIAL BANK PCL THAILAND SICOTHBK
BANGKOK,
4 KRUNG THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED THAILAND KRTHTHBK
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CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY



AYA Bank is building an inclusive organization
that prioritizes the well-being of our community.
Hence, our CSR activities have become a single
tool that can support sustainability. For AYA Bank,
CSR has been an inherited and inbuilt element of
its culture from the day the Bank was founded. We
are committed to assisting the larger community
through a variety of purposeful humanitarian
programs. Through our community engagement,
individuals and communities are empowered to
take an active role in their own well-being and
participate in the decisions and structures that
impact the community’s development.

We work with local schools, colleges, and
universities to provide financial assistance
in nurturing the education of the younger
generations. We organize continuous learning &
development programs, education sponsorship
and flexible working hours to accommodate with
part time courses for staff.

We also work with local hospitals, dispensaries,
and other civil society organizations providing
healthcare services to the public, whether
these entities are public, private or NGOs.
As incorporated in our CSR policy, AYA Bank
participates in multiple philanthropic activities at
large to support areas in need.

With our efforts to increase opportunities for
youth and women footballers, the Bank has given
its commitment for aiding holistic development

of Myanmar football.

We encourage our employees to participate

in community services organized by the Bank
such as tree planting for environment, seat belt
campaign for safety, blood donation for health,
providing other necessary basic needs for disaster
response and volunteering at AYA Quarantine
Center in combating COVID-19 pandemic. We
took turn every Sunday and provided services to
do clearningwrok at the Yankin Children Hospital.

Our CSR activities are largely implemented
directly or through the Ayeyarwady Foundation.
The Bank’s
pioneering interventions, with a focus to support

contribution includes several
the wellbeing of the community. While Myanmar
grappled with the COVID-19 global pandemic,
AYA Bank, in collaboration with the Ayeyarwady
Foundation, has been at the forefront to control

the impact of the pandemic.

The most significant project is, setting up of a
temporary COVID-Care Hospital with a capacity
of more than 500 beds with 100 medical staff
and volunteers in Thuwanna, Yangon, to treat
coronavirus infected patients. Along the CSR
journey, AYA Bank conducted socio-economic
development activities through Ayeyarwady
Foundation in various sectors such as education,
health, environment, disaster response and
microfinance.
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AYA Employee transformation

We value our people. We nurture, develop and respect
them, celebrate their success together, and are respected
for our highly professional approach. We take bold steps
to invest in the trainings and development of workforce to
become future-ready as the financial industry evolves.

AYA Continuous Learning Journey

AYA Bank is committed to be at the forefront of the future
of banking, with the ability of nurturing future talents. We
help our people improve their competencies, gain new
skills, increase the knowledge horizon, and grow them in
both personal and professional lives. Continuous learning
journeys are being provided to our employees for their
capacity development and upgrading for future-proof
skillsets. By fueling the culture of learning, we provide
employees at all levels with access to the Bank’s online
learning portal which is reachable on their fingertips at any
time.

Workplace Training

We are constantly on the move of encouraging our
people learning at every day from workplace and further
development to ensure having the skills required for
the jobs of today and tomorrow. We create an opened
working culture for raising questions, learning from
mistakes, developing new skills, and acquiring wisdom. It
enables employee to get connected with those who have
more experience and who can pass on their hard-earned
knowledge and career advice. Furthermore, we use our
collective capacity to foster partnership with colleagues for
the purposes of learning and growth. By developing our
employee at all levels, enabling the Bank to build a strong
succession pipeline of future leaders.
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Total Trainings in FY 2022-2023

Deputy Director and

. AS to Super AM to SM AGM to SGM
2022-Training Above
(Head Count) (Supervisor (Middle Management
(Manager Level) (Management Level)
Level) Level)
Women

(Received Training) 2055 4992 92 43

Men
(Received Training) >19 1793 76 47

Total 2574 6785 168 20

Deputy Director and

L. AS to Super AM to SM AGM to SGM
2023-March/Training Above
(Head Count) (Supervisor (Middle Management
(Manager Level) (Management Level)
Level) Level)
Women
(Received Training) 646 2237 92 14
Men
(Received Training) ey 7% =2 e
Total 783 2946 126 20
Year 2022 22 85 35
Year 2023-March 12 36 22
Total 34 121 57
Year 2022 352 1058 83.5
Year 2023-March 192 339 52.5
Total 544 1397 136
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AYA Career

As being an employee at AYA Bank, you will find potential prospects to grow across the organization.
To ensure the success of everyone in AYA, we offer both lateral and vertical career growth
opportunities. A wide range of career support is placed to ensure our employee are continuously
developing. The immediate reporting person will be guiding you to set clear career goals with
positive feedbacks in achieving them. We also set the culture to take self-responsibility for chasing
own career development. Our people management team recognizes the skill set of the individual

employee, identifies development programs to help you strengthen quality of work and outreach to
next level in career journey.

Total headcount at AYA Bank in FY 2022-2023

Under 25 212 365 577
25t0 34 2617 1623 4240
35to 44 419 529 948
45to 54 146 206 352
55 and above 18 46 64
Total 3412 2769 6181
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Report of the directors

The directors present their repart together with the audited financlal statements of Ayeyarwady Bank
Public Company Limited {the "Bank®) for the year ended March 31, 2023.

1. DIRECTORS
The directors of the Bank in office at the date of March 31, 2023 are

L Zaw Zaw

Daw Htay Heay Khine

Daw Khin Saw Oo

Daw Ehin Ma Ma

U Than Zaw

U Myint Zaw

@r, Bung Tun Thet

U Min Sein@Balawonikaykaray
L Heun Lin Do

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The princlpal activity of the Bank is to provide full banking services with two hundred and sixty-
two branches acraoss Myanmar,

3. DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The directors holding office at the end of the financlal year had no interests in the share capital of
the Bank as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the Bank , except as
Foliows:

Shareholdings registered in name of director
At beginning of Year or date

H_nmtu-l'dire:mrs of appointment, if later At end of year
..... LI P ) R TR B e ___ql_l_,—ﬁ;_ﬁ_;_ﬂﬂﬂ'___l_,ﬂ}ﬁ,_ﬂﬂﬁ
.. .Daw Htay Htay Khine ... B FOPPPREY [ 120000 - 170,000
..... l_.}Thﬂ_l'lE.ah'___ ____,_341:]&0_?{41;&&_
..... L A e ot .| PP
_____ Ben- RIS M e e e s e g L R
..... O s ey A S AR SR ARSI Ry O | LSRN,

4, RESULTS OF THE BANK

The financlal position of the Bank as at March 31, 2023 and the financial perfarmance of the Bank
for the yvear then ended are set out on page & and page 7, respectively,

5. DIVIDENDS

Mo dividend has been proposed by the Board of Directors of the Bank for the year ended March
31, 2023,
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6. AUDITORS

The flnancial statements have been audited by Khin Sandar Win, Certified Public Accountant and
Engagement Partner of Win Thin and Assoclates Limited.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Myint Zaw Than Zaw Khin Saw Qo
Chief Executive Officar Wice Chalrman Exacutiva Ghairman
AYA Bank PCL AYA Bank PCL AYA Bank PCL

Crate: August 15, 2023



AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

The Directors are pieased to submit their statement to the members, together with the audited statemant
of financial position of Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (the "Bank™), the statement of
proflt or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows together with the notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, These have
been prepared In accordance with the provisions of Myanmar Companies Law {the "Law™) and the
International Financlal Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ("IASBE").

In case of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Impairment of Financial Asset, the Bank continues to apply
International Accounting Standards 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement with loan
lass provisloning modified by the Central Bank of Myanmar {(“CBM") Notification No. 17/2017, Asset
Clagsification and Provisioning Regulations, and CBM Instruction Letter Mo, MaBaBa/MP/FIR/{154/2020)
dated May 5, 2020 toall financial Institutions for extension period till August 31, 2023 for full
compiiance and the Section 39 of Financial Institution Law ("FIL") 2016.

In the apinion of the Directors, the statement of financial position of the Bank and the statement af profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows,
together with the notes theraon, as set out on pages 10 to 56, are drawn up 50 8s to give a true and fair
view of the financial pesition of the Bank as at March 31, 2023, and the financlal performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Bank for the year then ended and at the date of this statement, thera
are reasonable grounds to believe that the Bank will be able to pay its debts when they Fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Yol B, o e

O e e e i e R

lyrint Zavd Than Zaw Khin Saw 0o
Chief Executive Cfficer Wige Chairman Executive Chairman
AY¥A Bank PCL AYA Bank PCL AYA Bank PCL

Date: August 15, 2023
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WP WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES LTD

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Room (28/2C) 1™ Fleor, Rose Condominium, Mo. 182/154, Botahtaung Pagoda Road, Pazundaung Tewnship,
Yangon Reglon, Myanmar, Tel: 35-1-8201798, 8296164, Fax: 95-1-8245671 Email; info@winthinassociates.com

Ref: 378/A-BB/ March 2023
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of AYEYARWADY BANMK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the finandial statements of Ayeyarwady Bank Public Company Limited (the "Bank"™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2023, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting polides and other explanatory information, as
st out on pages 10 to 56,

In our opinion, the financial staternents present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the
Bank a3 st March 31, 2023 and its finandal performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the provisions of Myanmar Companies Law (the "Law™) and the International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS"). In case of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Impalrment of Finandial Asset,
the Bank continues to apply International Accounting Standards 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement with joan loss provisioning modified by the Central Bank of Myanmar (“CBM")
Notification No. 17/2017, Asset Classification and Provisioning Regulations, and CBM Instruction Letter
No.MaBaBa/MP/FIR/(154/2020) dated May 5, 2020 to all financial Institutions for extension period till
August 21, 2023 for full compliance and the Section 39 of Financial Institution Law ("FIL") 2016 5o as
to give a true and falr view of the state of affalrs of the Bank as at March 31, 2023, and the results,
changes in equity and cash Mows of the Bank for the financial year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our awdit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) issued by
Intarnational Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (the "IAASE"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for ACCOuUntants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("TESBA Code®), amd we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We balieve that the
audlt avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basls for our opinion,

Bagis of accounting - Restriction on distribution or use

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prapared to assist the Bank in complying with the financial reporting provisions
required by Its shareholders and business partners. As a result, the financial statements may not be
suitable for another purpose. Our report | Intended solely for the Bank, its shareholders and Business
partners and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the Bank, |ts sharehslders and
business partners without consent from the auditor, Our opinion is net modified In respect of this matter.

Other Matters

Ancther set of financial statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2023 were prepared by
management In accordance with Myanmar Companies Law (the "Law") and the Myanmar Financial
Reparting Standards ("MFRS™) including the modification of the requirements of Myanmar Accounting
Standards 39, Financial Instrument: Racognition and Measurement In respect of loan loss provision by the
Central Bank of Myanmar ("CBM") MNotification Mo. 1772017, Asset Clarification and Provisioning
Regulations, and CBM [nstruction Letter No.MaBaBa/MP/FIR/(154/2020) dated May 5, 2020 ro all
financial institutions for extension period till August 31, 2023 for full compliance and the Section 39 of
Financiallnstruction Law ("FIL") 2016 and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on May 31, 2021.
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Responsibliities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation of financial statemeants in accordance with the atcounting
policies as described In Note 2 to the financial statements and for such Internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free fram material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financlal statements, management is responaibie for assessing the Bank's abliity to
continiee a5 & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the
going concern basis of acoounting unless management either mtends to llguidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

The directors are responsibie for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole am
free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or érror, and to Bsue an auditor's report that
includes our opinien. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but |s not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1548 will always detect a materal misstatement when it exisis,
Mizstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Indlvidusily er in tha
Bgygregabe, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usars taken on the
basis of these financial stabements.

be part of an audlt In acoordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticlsm throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemants, whether due ko fraad
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
I& sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nat detecting 8 material
misstatenent resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from amor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrida of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to tha audit in order to design audit proceduraes
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on the
effactiveness of the Bank's Internal control,

# Evaluate the appropriateness of eccounting policies used and the reasconablensss of accounting
esbmates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt en the Bank's abllity to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required bto draw atbention in owr auditor's report to
the refated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our
opinton, Our considerations arme based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report, However, future events ar conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a
gaing concerm,

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments, Including the
disclosures, and whether financial statements represent the underdying transactions and events in &
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matbers, the planned scope 8nd timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, induding any significant deficiencies In Internal controd that we
identify during our audit.

S
Khin Sandar Win (PAPP-437)
B8.Com., CPA, DBL
Engagement Partner
WIN THIN & ASSOCTATES LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REGISTRATION mMG. ACC DOB
Date: August 15, 2023
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION

As At March 31, 2023

Kyats in million
ASSETS
Cash and cazh equivalents

Placement with aother fimancial institutions

Ivastmant securities
Loan and advances

Bills receivable

Dther assets

Inyastment proparty
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

Tatal Assets
LIABILITIES

Borrowing from banks
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Repurchase agreement
Other llabilities

Lease liabilities
Subordinated Debt
Taotal Liabilities
EQUITY

Share capital

Resarves

Retained sarnings

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

OFF-BALANCE SHEET
Contingent liabilitles
Commitmenis

The accompanying notas forms part of the Anancial statements

On behalf of the Board of Directars;

Myint Zaw o
Chief Executbhve Officer
AYA Bank PCL

Crate: August 15, 2023
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Mote

10
11

iz
13
14
15
16

17
18
15
20
21

2
23

24

26
27

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

760,695.1 5502993
153,200.0 167,132.0
2,019,555.0 4,319,285.3
3,213,383.9 2,844 409.8
14,45%8.0 71,2155

232 6685.7 137,086.1
3,484.1 3,555.8
337.648.7 343.675.3
18,322.4 24,8976
13,524.1 15,107.3

6, 756,936.% & 582,664.6
86,783.7 300,000.0
21,356.2 23,250.9
6,054,150.9 5,565,462 4
= 100,617.2

135,5598.1 176,615.1
5,015.6 11,395.9
84.000.0 71,120.0
6,397,904.5 6,248 461.4
140,009.0 140,000.0
104,156.9 116,656.9
114 8E6.5 T7.546.2
358,032.4 334,203.1
6,756,936.9 6,582,664.6
67,626.1 242,745.9
210,135 8 142,615.2

o

s el o e e e e

Khin Saw Oo

Executive Chalrman

AYA Bank PCL



AYEYARWADY BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Year Ended March 31, 2023

October 1, 2021
April 1, 2022 to

to March 31,
Kyalbs in miifion MNote PHER 3. 2050 2022
Interest income 28 483,072.2 246,646.3
Interest expensea 28 (355,576.0) (171,601.9)
Mat interest income 1317,496.2 75,044.4
Fea and cammissicn income st BE, 2432 23,1518
Fee and commission expense 5 (21,302.7} {504.6)
Other incame/(expense ) 30 8, 182.7 2,652,6
Met non-Interest Income 73,323.2 25,309.6
Taotal income 200,819.4 100,354.0
General and administration expenses 32 (23,841.9) (35,222.0)
Operating lease cxpenses K, (207.9) (162.4)
Depreciation and amortisation 14715716 (24,007.4) {12,749.1)
Other cperating expenses 33 (11,485 5) (2,101.1)
Spedific Allowance 11 (16,265.1) (9,594.3)
2 %% general loan loss provision - -
Total expanses {135.807.7) (59,828.9)
Profit before tax 65,011.8 40,525.1
Income tax expense 34 {15,286.8) (B,773.7)
Met profit for the year/period representing
and total comprehensive income for the 49,725.0 31,751.5

year/period reprasenting

The accompanying notes farms part of the Anancial statements.

iOn behalf of the Board of Directars,

-._,_,_Ff:;-f;
Mylnt Zaw Than Zaw Khin Saw Oa
Chiel Executive Oficer Vice Chairman Executive Chairman
AYA Bank PCL AYA Bank PCL AYa Bank PCL

Date: Auvgust 15, 2023
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AYEYARWADY BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended March 31, 2023

Kyats in million Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before ax

Adfustrment for:

- Depreciztion of investmant property iz
- Depreciation of property, pant and eguipment 14
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets

« Amartizabion of Intangible assats 16
- Adjustment of property, plant and equipment i4
- Adjustment of investment property 13
- Adjustment of intangible assets 15
- Subordinated debt 23
- Specific allowance / (Specific provision)

= Effects of fixed assets written off 14

Logsf(Gain} on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Changes in

= Cash and balances with central bank / related
corporations - restricted

- Adjustmient Cash and balances with cantral
bank with restricted

- Placement with Private Bank

- Investment s&curities

- Loan and advances

- Bl receivables

= (ither assats

= Investment property

- Deposit from banks

- Deposit from customers

= Repurchase agreement

= Qther liabilities

Income tax paid

Mat cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitien of praperty,plant and eguipmeant

Acquisition of right-of-use assets

Acquisition of intangible assets

Pioceeds from disposal of FPE

Het cash used in Investing activities

Cash flows from filnancing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities

-Izsue of Share Capital 24
« Borrowing from Banks 17
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents

Cashe and cash egquivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash egquivalents at end of the year

{Note 8)

The accompanying notes formm part of the financial statements.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Myint Zaw Tharm Zaw
Chief Executive Officer Vice Chairman
AYA Bank PCL AYA Bank PCL

Date: August 15, 2023

April 1, 2022 to October 1, 2021 to

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
65,011.8 40,525,1
71.2 11.3
12,546.1 8,470.2
6,102.7 2,477.8
5,284.8 1,789.7
= {2,223.8)
- 2,223.8
124.4 5
12,880.0 (5,364.0)
16,265.1 9,594.3
16.3 1.0
1,151.9 {135.2)
115,456.8 56,7704
(3,897.4) §2,362.0
- (8,461.7)
13,932.0 (163,132.0)
299,730.3 339,410.9
(285,239.1) 70,348.4
62,757.5 9,5629.1
(73,355.6) {2,839.4)
- £1,361.9)
{1,894.7) {15,504.6)
498 6885 {677,973.9)
(100,617.2) 100,617.2
(B1,467.5) 14,384.2
448,093.6 (215,750.3)
(11,965.0) (6,995.00
436,128.6 (222,745.3)
(10,255.3) (11,901.8)
472.4 (1,809,2)
{3,826.1) {1,161.9)
2,565.6 491.0
(11,043.3) (14,381.3)
(5,380.3) {589.1)
9.0 .
__(213,216.3) 30,000.0
(218,587.6) 29,410.9
206,497.8 {207,715.8)
378,084.2 586,699.9
585,481.9 378,984.2

Khin Saw Og

Executive Chalrman
aYA Bank PCL
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2023

1. GEMERAL

Ayevarwady Bank LUimited was a private limited company regsterad by Ministry of Mational
Planning and Economic Development, Directorate of Investment and Company Administration by
its Registration Mo, 110312156 (former Registration No. 357 of 2010-2011) incorparated on June
14, 2010, Ayeyarwady Bank Limited changed lts type of company to Public Company Limited on
December 30, 2022 with Directorate of Invastment and Company Administration (*DICA"} and it
was approved by Central Bank of Myanmar (“CBM") as per CBM Letter No. eessjmaabBed/ eogs (142/

2023 dated March 9, 2023.

& Banking License Mo, MaPaBa/P-23/ [7) 2010 was issued on July 2, 2010 by the Central Bank af
Myanmar (“CBM"} to perform the functions |nitially restricted to item {a), (b), (h) and (I} of
Section 25 of The Financial Institutions of Myanmar Law (1990} with provision that any additional
functions will have to be applied for and approved in advance by the CBM,

The Bank was granted an Authorized Dealer Licence No, CBM, FE MD (77/2011) dated Movember
25, 2011, The Bank can therefore provide all banking services and transactions In both kocal and
foreign currencies at the same time,

Pursuant to the enactment of the Financlal Institutions Law in January 2016 ("FIL 2016™), the CBM
isguped Instruction 6/2016 dated Jupe 30, 2016, directing all banks to surrender thelr ficenses
under Saction 176, and to apely Tor 2 new one under Section 11 of the FIL2016.

Ag directed by the CBM, the Bank also surréndered the license mentioned in paragraphs above and
simultanegusly reapplied for the new license wunder FIL2016, The new fcense number
MA BA BA / BA BA [R)-13/08/2016 was Issued under FIL2016 an August 24, 2016, The new license
for Commercial Banking Business i3 uncondiional and more wide-ranging than the license
surrendered by the Bank,

The Bank had established two hundred and sixty-five {265) branches across the country as of
March 31, 2022. The Bank has closed 3 mini branches and they are merged with main branches in
the current financial year, As at March 31, 2023, the Bank has maintained two hundred and sixty-
bwo (262} branches across the country,

2, SIGNIFICAMNT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial slalements are prepared to assist the Bank in complying with the financal réporting
provisions required by its shareholders and business partners, The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the provisions of Mysnmar Companies Law (the "Law®} and the
Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as Issued by the [nternational Accounting
Standards Board ("IASBE"). In case of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; Impairment of Financial Assets,
the Bank continues to apply Intemnational Accounting Standards 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement with loan loss provisioning modified by the Central Bank of
Myanmar ("CBM") Notification No. 17/2017, Asset Classification and Provisioning Regulations, and
CBM Instruction Letter Ne. MaBaBa/MP/FIRS(154/2020) dated May 5, 2020 to all financial
institutions for extension perfod Hll August 31, 2023 Ffor full compliance and the Section 39 of
Financial Institution Law (“FIL*) 2016,

2.2 Basis of preparation ef financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting
period, a5 explained In the accounting palicies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

1D
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2. SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONT'D)
2.2 Basis of preparation of financlal statements (cont'd)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the
fair value of an assat or a liability, the Bank takes Into account the characteristics of the asset or
llability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements s determinad on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorisad into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are obsepvable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurernent in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

. Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access ak the measuramant date;

& Level ¥ Inputs are inputs, other than guoted prices Included within Lewvel 1, that are
obsaervable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs far the asset or liabilioy.

2.3 Mew and revised IFRS Issued but not yet effective

The Bank has not applied the following refevant and new revised IFRSs that have been issued but
nat effective as at the reporting date:

Amendments ko IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 to 2017 Cydle
IFRIC 23 Uncertalnty over Income Tax Payments

as 17 Insurance Conkracts

[FRS 10 and 145 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its
Asgsaciabes or Jaint Venture (amendmerks)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business
Amendments to [AS 1 and 145 8 Definitlon of material
Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework

in IFRS Standards
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above IFRSs In future periods will not have a
material impact on the financal statements on the Bank in the period of thelr initlal adoption
except for the following:

IERS 17 Insurgnce Conkracts

IFRS 17 esiablishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes IFAS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines & general model, which is modified for Insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described &8s the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified If
certain criteria are met by measuring the lability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach. The general modal uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing
and uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes
inte account market interest rates and the Impact of palicyholders' options and guarantees.

The Standard Is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Janeary 2021, with

early application permitted. If is applled retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the
modified retrospective approach or the fair value approach is applied, An exposure draft
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONT'D)
1.3 New and revised IFRS Issued but not yet effective (cont'd)

amendments to IFRS 17 addresses concerns and implementation challemges that were [dentified
after IFRS 17 was published, One of the main changes proposed Is the deferral of the date of
initial application of IFRS 17 by one vear to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20232,
For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initlal application is the start if the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the
beginning of the pericd immadiately preceding the date of initial application,

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to [FRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with slituations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an Investor and its associate or joint wventure, Specifically, the amendrents
state that galns or losses resylting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a
business in & transaction with an associate or 8 joint venture thaet is accounted for using the equity
method, &re recognised In the parent's prafit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and lopsses resulting from the
remeasurement of investments retained In any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognisad in tha
former parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' Interests in the new
associate or joint venture. The effective date of tha amendments has yet to be set by the 1ASB;
however, earlier application aof the amendments is permitted. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the Bank's financlal
statements In future perieds should such transactions arise.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business

The amendmants clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for
an integrated set of activities and asssts to qualify as a business. To be considered a business an
acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. Additional guidance is
pravided that helps to determineg whether a substantive process has hean acquired.

The amendments intreduce an optienal concentration test that permits a8 simplified assessmient of
whather an acquired cat of activities and asscts is net a business, Under Une uplional concentraton
test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fabr value of
the gross assets acquired Is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets,

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the first annual reporting peried beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with early application permitted.

Amendments to 184S 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

The amendments are intendad to make the definition of materlal in IAS 1 easier to understand and
are not Intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of
'‘obscuring’ material information with Immaterial infermation has been Inciuded as part of the new
definitlon. The threshold for materiality influending users has been changed from 'could Influence’
to "could reascnably be expected to influance’.

The definition of material in IAS 8 has béen replaced by & reference to the definition of materal in
145 1. In addition, the 1ASE amendad other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain
a definition of material or refer to the term ‘'material’ to ensure consistency.

The amendments are applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020, with earller application permitied.
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= SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES { CONT'D)
2.3 MNew and revised IFRS Issued but not yet effective {cont'd)

Amendments to Referances to the Conceptual Framework in [FRS Standards

Together with the revised Conceptual Framework, which became effective vpon publication on 25
March 2018, the TASB has also issued Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Standards. The document contalns amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS &, IFRS 14, 1IAS 1,
185 8, TAS 34, [AS 37, 1AS 38, TFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

Mot all amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to referenices to and
quates from the framework so that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework, Some
pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of the Framewaork they are referencing
to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASS in 2001, the IASE Framework of 2010, or the new
reyised Framework of 2018) or to Indicate that definitions in the Standard have not been updated
with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The amendmaents, where thay actually are updates, are effective for annual pericds beginning on
or after 1 January 2020, with sarly applicalion permittad,

2.4 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabllities are recognisad In the Bank's statement of financial position
when the Bank becomes & party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument.

Financial assets and financial llabilities are initlally measured at fair valve, Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities st fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financlal Habilities, as appropriate, on (nitial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
labilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.5 Financial Assets

Al regular way purchases or sales of financlal assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery nf assets within tha time frame established by regulstion or convenliun In the marketplace,

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amartised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.5.1 Amartised cost

Financial aszsets are measured at amortised cost if the financial assefs are hald within a business
model whase objective Is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ["SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

Subseguent to Initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and/or losses are recognised in profit or loss upon derecognition,
reclassification or Impairment, and through the amertisation process. Interest Income calculated
using the effective interest method Is recognised In profit or loss. A modification gain or loss Is
recognised in proft or loss when the cantractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or
atherwise modifled and the renegatiation or modification does not result in the derecognibicn of
that financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are classified as current assets, except for those
having maturity later than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({ CONT'D)

2.5 Financial Assets {cont'd)
2.5.2 Falr Value Through Other Comprehansive Income {(FYOCT)

Azsets that are hekd within a business model whose cbjective Is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where those cash flows represent SPPI,
are measured at FVOC], Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at FVOCI are measurad
at falr value. Any gains or losses from changes in falr value of the financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive Income, except that impairment losses and Interest Income are recognized
in prefie or Yoss, The cumulative gain or loss previcusly recagnised In other comprehensive Income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset

Is derecognised.
2.5.3  Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets measured at FYTPL are financial assets that do net meet the criteria for amortised
cast or FVOCT, On initial recogniton, the Bank may Irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise fmeets the requirements to be measured at emertised cost ar at FVOCT or at FVTPL if
doing 50 eéliminates or significantly reduces an acoounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Financial assets categorised as FVTPL are subsequently measured at thelir fair value with gains or
Insses recognised in the profit or loss,

2,5.4 Debt Instruments

Debt instrioments are those instruments that meet the definition of fnandgal liability from the
issuers’ parspective, The classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend
on the Bank's business modeal for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the asset.

2.5.5 Eqguity Instruments

Equity instruments areé financial assets that meet the definiticn of equity, that is, instruments that
do not contain a contractual obligatien te pay and that evidence & residual Interest, The Bank
subsequently measures all equity Instruments at FVTPL, except where the Bank has elected, at
Initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity Instrument at FYOCL. When the election to
PVOCT is made, fair value gaing or losses are recognised in other comprehensive incoma and are
ot subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, induding on disposal, Dividend representing the
returns on sach investments, continues to be recognisced In profit or losa when the Bank's right to
receive such payments |s establishad.

2,56 Impairment of financial assets

From April 1, 2018, the Bank continues to apply Intemnatienal Accounting Standards 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement with loan loss provisioning modified by the Central
Bank of Myanmar ("CBM") Notificatlon MNo. 17/2017, Asset Classification and Provisionlng
Reguiations, and the Section 39 of Financial Institution Law ("FIL") 2016,

Financial assets, aother than those ak FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the and of
each reporting period. Financlal assets are considered to be Impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that ooourred after the Inltial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the Investment have been affected, and an
impalrment loss recognised.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectivaly to an event occurring after
the impalrment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the Investment at the date the impairment
is reversad does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the Impalmment not
been recognized.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONT'D)

2.5 Financial Assets {cont'd)
2.5.6 Impairment of finandal assets [ cont'dl

Dbjective evidence of Impairment could include:

significant fimancial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; ar

- breach of contract, such as a default er delinquency in Inberest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
ar

. the disappearance of an active market for that finandal asset because of financial
difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the Impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the presant value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted 2t the financlal asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carrled st cost, the amount of the Impairment loss s measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset, Such impalrment
foss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset Is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financal assets with the exception of loans and advances, where the carrying amounl s reduced
throuah the use of an allowance account. When a loans and advances |5 considered uncallectable,
it Is written off against the allowance actount. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes In the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised In profit or loss.

Credit quality - Classification of [pans and advances, specific provisions and general provisions
Classification of loans and advances

The Bank categorises its loans and advance in accordance to IFRS 7 Fnancial Instruments:
Disclosures to be categorised into "impaired”, "past due but rot impaired” and "current, standard
and not impaired”. Past due loans refer to laane that are overdue by one day or maore. Impaired
lpans are non-performing loans with specific allowances made.

Furtharmmore, the Bank aleo categorises thele lsans past due in eucwrdance with CBM NOTTICADIGN
MNo. 17/2017 Asset Classification and Provisionfng Regulations.

The Bank categorises jts loans and advances in accordance with CBM's regulation No. 17/2017 on
Lpan Grading and Provisioning. In additional, loans and advances are required under IFRS 7 to be
categorisad into “impaired”, "past due but not impaired” and “current, standard and not impaired”.
Past due loans refer to loans that are overdue by one day or more. Impaired loans are non-
porforming loans with specific allowances made.

(1) Performing loans

Current and Standard grades indicate that the timely repayment of the sutstanding credil facilities Is
not in doubt and the credit facility does not exhibit any potential weakness in repayment capability,
business, cash flow or financial position of the barrower,

Watch grade Indicates that the borrower exhibits potential weaknesses that, If not corrected |n &
tmely manner, may affect future repayments and warrant close attention by the Banlk.

Sub-standard grade indicates that the credit facilities exhibit definable weaknesses either in respect
of business, cash fow or financlal position of the borrower that may jeopardize repayment en
existing terms,
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONT'D)

2.5 Financial Assets (cont'd)
256 |Im n n

{ii} Mon-perferming loans

In accordance with CBM Motification Mo, 17/2017 Assst Classification and Provisioning Regulations,
"nan-performing” means a loan or advance that is no longer generating income and which is
classified as doubtful or loss.

In determining if the loan is non-performing, management also considers several factors such as
expected future cash flows, the financial ability of the borrower to meet its obligations, and business
and econamic conditions,

Doubtful grade Indicates that the credit facilities exhibit severe weaknesses such that the prospect of
full recovery of the cutstanding credit facilities is questionable and the prospect of a loss is high, but
the exact amount remains undaterminable.

Loss grade indicates the amount of loan recovery is assessed to be insignificant. As per the CBM's
Instruction, all loans with repayments over 180 days past due are clascified as *Loss”,

Specific Provisions
The Bank makes specific provision for impalrment of loans and advenoes and other assets on and
off-balance sheet in accordance with CEM MNotification No. 172017 Asset Classification and

Provisioning Reguiabions.

Classification of Provisions on shartfall

loans and advances Days past due in security valua
Current and Standard 30 days past due 0%

Watch 31 to 60 days past due 5%
Substandard &1 to 80 days past due 25%%
Doubtful 91 to 180 days past due S0%

Loss Dvar 180 days past due 100%

The specific pravision shall be recorded in the Bank's accounts and charged to the profit and loss
actount in the manth in which it occurs and shall not be spread over future perieds. The Bank can
however stagger the shartfall in the specific provigioning in egual amounts over a period of three
years from the date of the Notification as prescribed in CBM Notification No. 17/2017 Assets
Classification @ Frovisloning Reguiations, and CBEM Instruction Letter Mo, MaBaBa /MP /FIR/
(154/2020) dated May 5, 2020 to all financial Institutions for extension pedod il Aagust 31,
2023 for full compliance.

Coliaterals and credit enhancements are disclosed in Nete 5.1.1.1.

General! Provisions

Banks &re required to malntain general loan loss reserve by making general loan provision up to
2% (March 2022: 2%) of total outstanding of loans and advences in accordance to CBM
motification No. 17/2017, Assetc Classification and Provisioning Regulations and Letter No.2621/
Ka Ka (1)/3/507/2018-2019 dated May 10, 2019 to charge as expense in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.5.7 Derecognition of financial assels

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset explre, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the rizks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another perty. IF the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantialty ail
the risks and rewards of ownerghip and continues to controf the transferred asset, the Bank
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an assoclated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrawing for the proceeds received,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONT'D)

2.6  Financial liabilities and equity instruments
2.6.1 lassl

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Bank are classified as either financial llabllities or as
equity In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial Nability and an equity instrument.

2.6.2 Eauity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its labilties. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Bank's own eguity Instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss s recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Bank's ewnr eguity Instruments,

27 Financial llabilities
Financial lizbilities are classified as efther financial labilitlies 'at FYTPL" or ‘other financlal liabilities,
Financial liabilites
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FWTPL. Howewver, flnancial liabilities that arse whan a transfer of a financlal aszat
does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and

financial guarantee contracts Issued by the Bank, are measured in accordance with the specific
accounting palleles set out below,

2.7.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FUTPL when the financlal liability Is elther held for trading or
it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
- it has been incurred principally for the purpuae of repurchasing IC n e BEaF berm; ar

" on initial recognition it is part of a portfalio of identified finsncial instruments that the Bank
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

n It is & derivative that 15 not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A fimanclal liability other than & financal liakllity keld for trading may be designated as at PVTFL
upon Initial recogniticn if

= guch designation efiminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
Inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

" the flnancial liability forms past of a group of financial assets or fMinancial liabilltles or boeth,
which s managed and Its parformance Is evaluated on a falr value basis, in accordance
with the Bank's documented risk manegement or investmant strategy, and infermation
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

u it forms part of @ contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS @
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FYTPL.
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Z. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONT'D)
2.7 Financial liabilities {Cont'd)
£.7.1 nan iabiiitia

Financial liabliities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated
hedging. The net galn or loss recognised in profit of loss incorparatas any Interest paid on the
financial liability and is induded In the 'other income' and ‘other expenses’ line item in profit or
logs,

However, for financial Nabllities that are designated as at FYTPL, the amount of change In the fair
value of the financial lability that is attributable to changes In the credit risk of that |iability is
recognised In other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes In the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive Income would creste or enlarge an accounting
mismatch In profit or foss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is
recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a Ainancial liabllity's credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehansive income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss;
Instead, they are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financlal lability.

Gains or losses on financlal guarantee contracts issued by the Bank that are designated by the
Bank as at FYTPL are recoanised in profit or loss, Fair value is determined In the manner describad
financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost. Fihancial liabiities that are not (i)
contingent consideration of an acquirer in & business combination,(ii) held for trading, or (ili)
designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortisad cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating Interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {Inciuding all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective inberest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter perdod, ko the amortised cost of a Minancial lizbility,

2.7.2 Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract i$ a contract that requires the tssuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it Incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at thelr fair values and, If not designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a
transfer of an asset, are measured subssquently at the higher of:

L e amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 (see financial
assets above); and
. the amount vecognised initially less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenus recognlition policies set out above.
2.7.3 rHEl ncial li

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and enly when, the Bank's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire, The difference between the carrylng amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognisad in profit or loss.

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt Instrument into another one with the
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial llabllity and the recognition of a8 new financial llakility. Similarly, the Banic accounts for
substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the
ariginal financial Habllity and the recognition of a new liabilicy. It is assumed that the terms are
substantiafly different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
ingluding any fees paid net of any fees recelved and discounted using the original effective rate is
&t least 10 per cent different from the discounted present vaiue of the remaining cash flows of the
eriginal financial Hability. If the modificetion is not substantial, the difference between:

{1} the carrying amount of the liability before the modification; and
{2) the present value of the cash flows after modification is recognised In profit or loss as the
maodification gain or loss within other gains.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONT'D)
2.8 Revenue recagnition
2:8:1 n i m 5

The effective Imterest method is & method of calculating the amertised cost of a financlal
instrument and of allecating interest income or expense over the relevant period, The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
(incleding all fees on points paid or recelved that form an Integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
imstrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. Income and Expense are recognised &n an
effective Intarest basis for debt instruments other than those financial instruments "at Falr Value
Through Prafit or Loss®,

In accordance to the CBM MNotification No. 17/2017 Assets Classification and Provisioning
Regulfations, all interest income from non-performing loans |8 suspended under Loans and
advances {Mote 11) and shall enly be recognized as income when the interest has been collected
by the Bank,

2,82 Fegs and commission Income

The Bank's fee and commission income Includes six types of fees and commission Income as
follows and the assessment for sach type of fee and commiission income will be based on the flve
steps mentioned above.

Service charges
Exchange feas
Commission fees
Commitment fees
Defaull fees

SWIFT & Telex charges

Income s eamed from a diverse range of services provided by the Bank to Its customers. Fee
income |5 accounted for &5 fallows:

. Income earned on the execution of a significant act is recognised as revenue when the act
is completed (for example, commission arising from Issuance of Payment Orders,
Telegraphic Transfer and remittance and other services);

. income earmned from the provision of financlal facilities to customers is recognised as
revenue as the serv ices are provided (for example, default fees on loans, service charges
and commitment fee for loans overdrafts), usually on a time - apportion basis as per the
contracts,

The application of the requirements new IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers has not
resulted in the difference in recognition of fees and commission Income of the Bank as [FRS 15
Revenue from contrects with customers requires satisfaction of performance obligation, and there
Is na change in recognition method wpon adopton of IFRS 15.

2.9 Leasing

The Bank has adopted IFRS 16 with an Initial application of 1 January 2019 and applied the full
rebmspective appreach for transition to IFRS 16, Right-of-use assets and ligbilities will be
measured at the same amount, taking Into consideration prepayments and accruals recognized as
at each Mnancial year,

The Bank has elected to apply the practical expedients not to recognize right-of-use assets and
fease |labilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases af
low-value assets. The lease payments associabed with these leases are recognized as an expense
on a skraight-line basis ovar the lease term.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES [ CONT'D)
2.9  Leasing { cont’d)
The Bank as a lesses

The Bank assesses whether & contract 5 or contains & laase at inception of a contract. Al the date
of initigl application for feases previously classified as an operating lease applying MAS 17, the
Bank shall choose, on a lease by lease basis, to measure at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
reccgnized In the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initlal messurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs, They are
subsequenty measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Whenaver
the Bank incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is lgcated or restore the underlying asser to the condition reauired by the terms and
conditions of the l¢ase, a provision is recognized and measured under MAS 37,

Right-of-use assets are depreciabed over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. In estimating the lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset, the
Bank considers the non-cancellable perod, extension and termimation options, rent free periods
and estimated roinstatement cost, The extenslon and termination options are included In the leasa
term whan [t is reasonably certain to be exercised, The discount rate used to compute the present
value of the lease payments In deriving the lease liability was estimated using the Bank's
incremental borrowing rate which s defined as the rate of interest that the lessee would have ko
pay to borrow owver a similar term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use-asset In a similar economic environment,

Leases under MAS 17 (adopted pror to 1 January 2013}

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessee, Al other leases are dassified
as operating leases,

Operating lease — as a |escee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense In statement of income on a3
stralghit- line basis over tha lease term,

2.10 Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the Bank are measured and presented in the currency of the primary
economic epvironment in which the Bank operates (its functional currency). The functional
currency of the Bank is assessed to be the Myanmar Kyat by management,

In preparing the financial statements for the Bank, transactions In curréncies other than the Bank's
functicnal currency {forelgn currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevalling at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting pericd, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-menetary items carried
at falr value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined, Non-monetary items that are measurad in terms of
historical cost Im a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised In profit or loss in the peried.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({ CONT'D)

2.11 Employee benefits
2.11.1 Short-term and other long-term empfoyes benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employeas in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the pericd the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of
the benefts expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Lizbilities recognised in respect of short-term employes benafits are measurad at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid In exchange for the refated servica.

Liabllities recognised in respect of other long-term employee bansfits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Bank in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reparting date.

2,12 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

2,12.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year/period. Taxable prafit differs from
profit a8 reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income bacause It
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes Items that are not taxable or tax deductible. The Bank's lability for curment tax i3
calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Cuorrent kax is recognised as an expense or Incoma in profit or leas.

2.12.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences between the carrving amounts of assets and
lizbilities In the financial statements and the corrésponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utifised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised If the
tempnrary difference arigsee from the initial recognition (other than in 8 busioess wanbdnestion) of
&ssets and liabliitles In a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit ner the accounting profit.

In addition, deferred tax fiabilities are not recognised If the temparary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill,

The carrying eamount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the exbent that it Is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the
period in which the liabiiity is settied or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

The meagurement of deferred tax liabilitles and assets reflects the tax conseguences that wouid
foliow from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.12.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised In other comprahensive income or directly in equity respectively,
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2.13 Proparty, Plant and equipment

Properties in the course of construction are carmed at cost, &ss any recognised impalrment loss,
Cost Includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Bank’s accounting policy, Such properties are classifisd and included in the respactive
categories of property, plant and equipment. Deprecistion of these assets, on the same basls as
other property assets, commences when the assats are ready for their intended use,

Freghold land is not depreciated,

Buildings, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment nsses,

Depreciation is recognised =o &% bto write off the cost or valuation of assets [other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values over thelr useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated wseful lives, residual values and depreciation method sra
rewiewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes In estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

. Bulldings 50 years

. Leasahald improvemeants Over period of the leasa
. Dffice machine and ather squipment 10 years

. Furniture, fixtures and fittingsn 10 years

. Electrical equipment and computer accessories 5 years

. Motor vehices 10 vears

An ftem of property, plant and equipment B derecognised upon disposal oF when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an [tem of property, plant and equipmeant is determined as
the difference bebween the sales proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at end of each
year-end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on @ prospective basis.

2.14 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separatsly are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impatrment Insses. Tnfangible assats ara amerticed on o stralght-line basis over Lhei
estimated useful life of 5 years or licenging period. The estimated wseful iife and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes |n
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.15 Investment Properties

Investment properties include office bullding, commercial units, a shopping centre and retall stores
that are held for long-term rental yields and/or capital appreciation. Investmeant properties are
Initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at carrying value. Depreciation s computed
annually and recognized in profit or loss, Investment properties are subject to renovations ar
improvernents at regular intervals. The costs of major renovetions and Improvements are
capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced components are recognised in profit or loss.
The costs of malntenance, repalrs, and minor imprevements are recognised In profit or loss when
they are Incurred. On the disposal of an Investment property, the diference between the disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.16 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether thers is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in
order to detarmine the extent of the impairment loss (If any). When It is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an indlvidual asset, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of tha
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [ CONT'D)
2.16 Impalrment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill {cont'd)

cash-genarating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assats are also afllecated ta Individual cash-génerating units,
or otherwlse they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and ¢onsistent allocation basis can be (dentified,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impalrment at least annually, and whenever there |s an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Recoverabla amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In BssEssing
valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

[f the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than it
carrylng amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment 0ss is recognised immediately in profit or lass,

When an impairment |oss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-
generating unit) Is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increasad carrying amaount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
hag no impairment koss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) In prior years, A
reversal of an impalrment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.17 Repurchase agreemeants

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date are not derecognized
from the statement of financial position as the Bank retains substantially all the risk and rewards
of ownership. The corresponding cash received is recognized In the statement of financial position
as an asset with a corresponding obligation to return it, including accrued interest as a labiiity
within ‘repurchase agreesments. Refiecting the transaction’s economic substance a5 a loan to the
bank. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is
accrued over the life of agreement using the effective interest rate,

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a spedfied future date are not
recagnized in the statemant of financial position, The consideration paid, Including accrued interest,
Is recorded In the statement of financial position within ‘repurchase agreements’, reflecting the
transaction’s economic substance as a loan by the Bank. The difference between the purchase and
resale prices Is treated a5 Interest income and is accrued over the life of agreement using the
effective Interast rate,

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a
refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision Is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, it carrying amount is the present value of those cash
fiows (when the effect of the time value of money 1s material).

When seme or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, a receivable Is recognised as sn asset If It is virtually certaln that
reimbursement will be recelved and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Bank’s accounting palicles, which are described in Note 2, the directors of
the Bank are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and llabilities that are not readily apparent from other socurces. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considerad to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptiens are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision
affects only that period, or In the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both ourrent and future periods,

3.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2 to the
financial statements, the management did not make any critical judgements that have a significant
&ffect an the amount recognised in the financial statements.

3.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumpticns conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles within the next finandal year,

ios d

The Bank reviews Individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess
whether an Impalrment loss should be récorded in the income statement. The Bank recognizes an
impairment loss equivalent to the security shortfall of each individual loan, in accordance with the
requirement under the CBM Notification No. 17/2017, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Regulations including its annexure on the criteria for the valuation of security and collateral and
the impairment methodology is disclosed in more detall in Note 2,46 and CBM Instruction Letter
No.MaBaBa/MP/FIR/({154/2020) dated May 5, 2020 to all financial institutions for extension period
Bl August 31, 2023 for full complianca.

A loan is impaired when there |z objective evidence that events since the loan was granted, have
dffected expected cash flows from tha loan. The impairmenk loss B the difference bolwesn e
carrying value of the loan and the present value of estimated Future cash flows at the loan's
original effective interest rate. The Bank reviews its loans and advances to assess Impalrmeant on
a regular basis. In determining whether an impalrment loss should be recorded In profit or loss,
management exercises judgement on whether there s any observable data indicating that there Is
& measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the lcan before the decrease can
be identified within an individual loan.

All impaired Joans that exceed spedfic thresholds are individually assessed for impairment.
Impairment |asses are recognized in line with its internal policy on determining Impaired loans as
set out In Mote 2,5.6. These estimates take into account the customer’s debt capacity and financial
fexibility; the amount and sources of cash flows; and the realisable value of any security held,
Estimating the quantum and timing of future recoveries involves significant judgement. The size of
receipts will depend on the future performance of the borrower and the value of security, both of
which will be affected by future economic conditions. Additionally, collateral may not be readily
marketable, The actual amount of future cash flows and the date they are recelved may differ from
these estimates. Consequently, actual losses incurred may differ from those recognised in these
financial staterments.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
3.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty {(Cont'd)
Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financisl assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business made! test (Meass see financial assets secticns of Note 2.68). The Bank determines tha
business model at a fevel that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment Includes judgement reflecting afl relevant
evldence Including how the perfermance of the assets iz evaluated and their performance s
mieasured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. The
Bank monitors financial assets measured abt amortised cost or Ffair value through other
comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to thelr maturity to understand the reason for
their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which
the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Bank's continuwous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if
it is not appropriate whether there has been a change In business maodel and so & prospective
change to reclassification of those assets.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite useful lives are depreciated and
amortised over thelr useful lives, using the straight-line method, Management estimates the usaeful
lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets based on expected usage and industry
norms, Changes in the expected level of maintenance, usage and technological developments
could Impact the useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised.

The Bank Is subject to income taxes in Myaamar. In determmining Imcome tax labllities,
management is reguired to estimate the amount of 2% generaf |Gan loss provision and the
deductibility of certain expenses ("uncertain tax positions”). There are many transactions and
calculatiens for which the ulbmate tax determination ts uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Bank recognizes labilities for anlicipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due, Where the final tax outcome of these matbers Is diffsrent from the
amounts et were inicially recorded, tha Bank makes adjustment for such differences in the
Imcorme tax of the period in which such determinaktion is made,
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4. FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1 Categories of financlal instruments

The following table sets out the financial Instruments as at the end of the reporting period.

Kyats In million

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Financial agsats
Loans and recelvables:

Cach and cash equivalents 760,695.1 550,299.9
Emﬂ;mm other financial 153,200.,0 167,132.0
Held-to-maturity investments
Governrment securities 2.017,.161.4 2,.316,891.7
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unguoted equity share 2,393.5 2,393.6
Loan and advances, net 3,213,283.9 2,944 409.8
Bills receivable 14, 458.0 77,2155
&r asseis 159,240.3 T7,276.1
6,321,232.2 6,135,618.6
Financlal liabilities
At amortised oost;
Borrowing Trom banks 86,7837 200,000.0
Daposit from banks 21,356.2 23,2309
Dieposit from customers 6,064,150.9 5,565,462.4
Repurchate agreement = 100,617.2
Other lkabilities 110,450.5 141,083.0
Subgrdinated debt B4,000.0 71,120.0
Lease liabilities 5,015.6 11,3959
6,372,736.9 6,212,935.3

4.2 Fair valua of financial assets and liabilities

Financial Instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities. The fair value of & financial
instrument Is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or settled between
knowiedgeahle and willing parties in an arm’'s length transaction, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale,

As at the end of sach reporting period, the Bank did not hold any financial instruments which are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The unquoted equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, are carried at cost, less Impalrment because the fair value cannot be reliably
estimated using valuation techniques supported by observable markeat data determined.

Except for long term Government treasury bonds which are classified as held-to-maturity,
management considers that the carrving amounts of the financial assets and labilities of the Bank
recorded as amoriised cost in the financial statements approximates their fair value, due to the
relative short-term makurity of those filnancial instruments.

#s quoted prices are not available from active markeats, the fair value of the Government treasury
bonds was determined using a discounted cash flow method, based on the contractual cash flows
and cyrrent coupon rates as at the end of each reporting period. As at the end of the financial year,
these (nstruments which are recorded at amortised cost approximates the Fair value,
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities are principally related to extending loans and advances, sccepting deposits
and carmying out transactions. These expose the Bank to a varlety of financial risks, Including
forelgn exchange risk, interest rate nsk, credit sk and Iquidity risk.

Managing these financial risks forms an integral part of the Bank's businass. The Bank adopis the
risk management Set out in accordance to the risk appetite of the Bank, which encompass a
variety of controls and reporting processes. These not only include risk parameters for the various
financial instruments that the Bank may undertake, but also directions on the types of business
that the Bank may engage in, guidelings for the acceptance of customers for all types of financial
instruments and terms under which customer business is condyuctad,

The Bank balieves that it has effective processes in place to identify, measure, monitor and
ultimatedy, mitigate these finandal risks.

A discussion on the main financial risks that the Bank Is exposed to and how thesa risks are
managed, is set out below.

5.1 Credit Risk

Credit rigk Is considered to be the risk of loss due to inability or unwillingness of the counterparty
to fulfil its payment cbligations to the Bank. Management has a credit policy in place. The Bank
generally holds full collaterals against the credit facilities granted and the right to dispose of the
collaterals when certain exposure thresholds are exceeded. The Bank generally only accapts land
and buildings as collaterals, with other types of collaterals such as gelds and machinerlas making
up the minarity of the population of collateral held. Credit evaluations to derive the Bank's risk
exposures according to internal policies are performed on all dients at the inception of the loans
and at loan roll over dates.

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit ek, The most traditional of
these is the taking of security for loans and advances, which is a common practice. The Bank
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation.
The principal collateral types for loans and advances include charges over land and bulldings, gold,
equipment, contract financing, guarantees, project contracting and residential properties.

All credit lending to non-bank customers is generally secured. In addition, in order to minimise
credit loss, the Bank will seek additional collateral fram the counterparty as soon as impalrment
indicaters ara noticad for the rolevant individual loans and advarnces,

The fair value of collateral is valued by an independent sssessor is hased on valuation technigues
commanly used for the comesponding assets, done before the inception of the loan. Loans are
usually given between the margins of 30% to 70% of the Forced Sale Value, which ks also
independently estimated. There is periodic revaluation of the collaterals in subseguent periods and
at the renewal/roll-over of a loan, the customer is questioned about any changes to the coflateral
at which point the need for a reappraisal will be deglded,

The credit rsk management and control are cenbralized with the Credit Commities, which reports
to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis. Exposure to credit risk is also fmanaged thraugh
regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital
repayment cbligations and by changing these leading limits where appropriate

The Bank's policy requires the review of individual credit facility on a perodic basis or when
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are
determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss on & case-by-case basis and subject to the
approval of Credit Committee.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
5.1 Credit Risk (cont'd)
5.1.1 Maximun exposure to credit dek

The following table presents the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period In respect of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet finandal Instruments,
without taking into asccount the value of any collateral or other security held, in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations. The maximum exposure to credit risk to an-balance
sheat |s the carrying amount of these instruments as reported in the statement of financial
position. For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount
the Bank would have to pay If the cbligations of the instruments issued are called upon. For
commitments, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of undrawn credit facilibes
granted to customiers.

Kyats in million March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 463,565.3 325,069.59
Placemant with ather financial 153.200.0 167.132.0
Investment securities 2,019,554.9 2.319,285.3
Loan and advances 3,213.383.0 2,944, 409.8
Bilts receivabie 14.458.0 77.215.5
Other assets 159,940.3 T7.276.1
Investernant property 3,484.1 3,555.8
56,027,586.6 5,913,044.4
Off-Balance Shest
Contingent liabilities 67,626.1 24274549
Undeawn loan commitments 210,135.8 142,615.2
Total maximum exposure to credit sk 6,305,348.5 6,299,305.6

5. 1.1.1 Collateral and other credit enhancements

In respect of the Bark's deposits with other banks, the Bank considers the exposure to credit risk
to be low as these deposits are placed with credit-worthy financial institutions. The financial effect
of collateral or credit enhancements obtalned for Other Assets are not expected to be significant.

For the loans and advances granted by the Bank, the following types of collateral and credit
enhancements are obtained, consistent with CBM Notification Mo, 1772017 Annexure:

Charges over land and buildings
Charges over machines

Mertgages over residential properties
Gold

Guarantees

Charges owver receivables

Where collaterals are repossessed, the Bank's policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset
can be best used for its internal operations or should be sold, Assets determined to be useful for
the internal operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lawer of their
repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is
determined to be a better option are transfarred to assets held for sale (Repossessed assets uynder
the categories of other assets) at their fair value or Falr value less cost to sell For non-financlal
aszets at the repossession date in line with the Bank's palicy.

As at March 31, 2023, 97.34% (March 31, 2022: 98%) of the carrying amount of loans and
overdrafte as disciosed in note 11 are backed by tangible, realisable collateral and credit
enhancements.
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2023

5.1
S.iad

FINAMNCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT [CONT'D)
Credit Risk (cont'd)

Credit risk by industry

The following table sets out the Bank’s Loan and Advances based on the exposure by industry as
at the end of the reporting period:

Kyats in miliion March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Agricultural 14,865.0 14,075.8
Construction 452,015.1 523,035.6
Livestock 25,886.8 21,978.2
Manufacturing 555,410.5 356,039.3
Service 655:352.9 BOS,677.6
Trading 1,122,091.8 1,074,649.0
Transportation 48 980,9 57,791.8
2,914,603.1 2,653,247.4

Genaral
Hire Purchase 261,707.9 329,986.9
Staff Loans 3,337.7 1,982 .4
[BD{Trade to overdraft) 76,3343 129.7
Credit Cards to Customers 21,913.5 41,772.3
Others 15 769.3 g 4871
379,062.7 383,368.4
3,293,665.8 3,036,615.8
Interest in suspense (5428.8) (1R, 746.7)
Spedific allowance (74, 853.1) (79,459.3)
TOTAL 3,213,383.9 2,944,409.8

The Bank adopts an internally developed credit rating scale, which generally corresponds to the
dassification set cut in the CBM Notification No. 17/2017 Asset Classification and Provisianing
Regulations (Note 2.5.6), The following tables sets out the credit classification of the Bank's loans

and advances as at March 31, 2023.

Kyats In million

Standard
Watch
Sub-standard

Doubtful
Loss

Interest in suspense
Less; Specific allowance

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
2,547,684.7 1,935,553.3
32,8129 i8,662.2
8,217.4 168,238.7
40,102.1 32,569.9
654,848,7 #71,591.7
(5,428.8) (12,746.7)
{74,853.1) (79,459.3)

— 3,213,3839

2,944,405.8
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended March 31, 2023

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

%% | Credit Risk {cont'd)

5.1.3 Cradit guality of loans and advances (cont’d)

Detalls of specific allowances by collectablility are as

fallows:

Kyats in million _March 31,3023 March 31, 2022
Current and Standard 5.0 -
Watch Ja.8 0.2
Sub-standard 76.0 .
Drouibtful 220.3 278.7
Loss 74, 515.2 79 1844

Balance at end of the year 74,853.1 79,459.3

A reconciliation for the movement in specific allowance for iImpairment lasses for the joans and
advances is presented below.,

Kyats in millian March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Balance at beginning of vear/periad 79,4503 &9 854.9
Specific allowanoe recognised in profit or loss 29,095.7 20,1754
Write-back of specific allowance recognised In profit (11,619.1) (10,585.1)
or [oss

Write-off of specific allowance (22,082.8) x
Balance at end of year 74.B53.1 79,459.3

The table below sets out information about the loans and advances held by the Bank required
under IFRS 7 Flnancial Instruments; Disclosures:

Kyats in milfion March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current, Standard and not impaired 2,588,715.0 2,132, 454,2
Past due but not Impalred 704,950 7 o0d, 161.6
Specific allowance [74,B53.1) (79,459.3)
Interest in suspenses {5,428.8% [12,746.7)

3,213.353.9 2,944 409.8

Current, Standard and not impaired includes current loans with regular repayment and standard
loans with repayment between 1 to 30 days. The past due loans and advances ere not impaired as
they are secured by tangible realizable coliatersl (referred to Note 5.1.1.13,

Liguidity risk Is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet Iits cash flows cbligations when they are
due, such as upon the maturity of deposits or arising from lean drave-downs.

It Is unusual for any bank to completely match the maturity profile of ts assets and liabllities since
business transacted s often of different terms and of different types. Therefore, controlled
mismatching of the maturities of assets and Habilities 1s fundamental to the management of
liguidity of the Bank,
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2023

L FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT {CONT'D)
5.2 Liquidity Risk (cont'd)

The objective of liquidity risk management is to ensure that the Bank has the ability to generate
sufficient cash or its equivalents, in a timely and cost effectively manner, to mest its commitments
as they fall due.

The management of liquidity risk is centralised in the Treasury Department who reports to the
Management and Asset/Liability Committee (*ALCO*). ALCO meeting is held on a menthiy basis or
more fréquently, as required, to oversee [ligquidity risk management of the Rank and s
supplemented by a “Funds Maeting” which is hald weekly in addition to any meetings caiied by the
Executive Management on a need to basis. The Bank has in place Business Contingency Plan
("BCP”) and Contingency Funding Pian ("CFP™) which include disaster situation facing by the Bank,
The SCP covers operational steps and procedure of how to handle money transactions during
disaster situatian, while the CFP covers steps reguired to measures to ensura any liguldity related
issues are addressed. The BCP & CFP are formulated to mest &l contingencies arising not only
from the ardinary course of business but alsa on liguidity crisis situation.

As part of its liquidity risk management framework set by CBM reguiations and the ALCO the Bank
is required to maintaln adequate liguid assets to manage its short-term liquidity. The Bank refies
for its short-term liquidity on investments in goverament securities, borrowings from CBM,
Repurchase Agreements ("Repo™) of government securities and holding cash reserves. This serves
to ensure full cash inflows are available to meet customer withdrawals upon maturity or earlier,

The Bank's liquidity ratios as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 were 48.85% and 45.39%
respectively and hence more than 20% fixed by the CBM as per CBM Notification No. 1972017
Liquidity Ratio.

3.2.1  Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Bank's financial assets and liabilities on a contractual undiscounted
cash flow basis, grouped based on the remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the
reporting period. The adjustment column Includes items which are part of the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, such as Interest payable or receivable, but are not included in the
carrying amount of the financial Instruments in the statement of financial position.

On a behavioral basis, the expected cash fluws of some of these hnancial liabilibes could vary
significantly from the disclosures below. While deposits from customers are contractually on
demand, these deposits have remained and are expected to remasin refatively stable, and has been
a source of long-term funding for the Bank, based on historical trends, Similarly, while undrawn
loan commitments are contractually available on demand, these are not all expected to be drawn
upon immediately, and, available at the discretion of the Bank which has the defector right to
cancel the avallability of the drawdown portion of loans.
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AYEYARWADY BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2023

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
5.3 Interest Rate Risk

Sensitivity to interest rates in banking activities arises from mismatches In the interest rate
characteristics of the assets and their correspending liability funding. Cne of the major causes of
these mismatches is timing differences in the repricing of the assets and the liabilities.

Financial Instrurnents which are issued at fixed rates exposs the Bank to fair value Interest rate
risk. However, changes In market interest rates will not have an Impact on the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as all financial instruments are accounted for on an
amartised cost hasis,

The interest rates charged or granted by the Bank are determined by a committee with oversight
by Beard of Directors. These interest rates are set within a band determined by the Central Bank
of Myanmar. As of March 31, 2023, the interest rates on loans are subject to the following
maximum caps:

] Loans and advances: 9% - 14.5 % per annum  {Mar 2022: 10%-11 % per annum)
] Overdraft: S 0 per annum (Mar 2022: 9% per annum)

As at March 31, 2022, the interest rates on deposits are subject to the following minimums:

. Saving deposits: & % per annum {Mar 2022: 6 % per annum)
. Fixed deposits: 7% - 9.75 % per annum  (Mar 2022: 7% -B.5% per annum)
" Call deposits: 7% = 8.75 % per annum  (Mar 2022: 2% perannum)

The tables below summarises the Bank's exposure to interest rate repricing risks. Included in the
table are the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual rapricing or maturity dates.
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AYEYARWADY BANK LIMITED

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2023

5. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONT'D)
5.4 Currency risk (cant'd)

5.4.1  Currency sensitivity

The following table details the senpsitivity to a change in the relevant forelgn currendces
agalnst the functional currency of the Bank, Myanmar Kyat. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding forelgn currency denominated monetary bems and adjusted for
their translation at the period end for the change In fareign currency rates below,

The following table sets out the increase [decrease) to the Bank's profit before income bax
arising from a 10% appredation of the relevant forefgn currency against the functicnal
currency of the Bank. A 10% depredation will have the opposite impact to the Bank's
profit before Incame tax.,

Kyats in million March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

UsD 4,355.4 3,081.8

EUR 146.6 (133.7)

SG0 511.4 505.2

Others 28171 60.5
6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Bank's capital management are to malntain an optmal level of
capital, which |s adequate to support business growth, commensurate with the Bank’s risk
profile and meet the regulatory requirements. The management of capital funds is
cantralised In the Treasury departmaent and monitored daily by the Finance departrment.

The Bank has adopted the revised computation method in accordance to CBM MNetification
Mo, 16/2017 Capital Adequacy Reguiation (CAR) issued on July 7, 2017, effective from the
date of issuange. The revised computation of the capital adequacy ratios is based on the
Bank's cora capital and risk weighted assets. According to the new regulation, the Bank
considers Its core capital (Tier 1 capital) to include issued and paid-up capital, statutory
reserves and retained earnings. Supplementary capital (Tier 2 capital) Includes general
loan loss reserves on oredits, The Bank's risk weighted assets include loans and advances,
all other assets and off-balance-sheet items.

As at March 31, 2023, the Bank reported a Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.15% (4% fixed by CBM)
and capital adequacy ratio of 11.51% (8% fixed by CBM) based on the revised
computation method stipulated by CBM,

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank's shareholders are disclosed In Mote 24, U Zaw Zaw is the Major shareholder
with 74% of total shares in the bank, The Bank is managed by nine members of Board of
directors including thees Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Bank's related parties
are determined based on the CBM Directive 11/2019 dated March 25, 2019 and IAS 24
Related party disclosures.
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F S RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (CONT'D)

7.1 Compensation of Key Managemeant Personnel
Key Management Personnel are those persons hawving authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activitses of the Bank, directly or indirectly, including
any director {whether exedutive or otharwise) of the Bank.

The following table sets out the compensation for Key Management Personnel of the Bank
in exchange for services rendered to the Bank for the period they served during the year:

April 01, 2022 to  October 01, 2021

Kyacs b iititon March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
Hey Managemant's remuneration 4. 305.2 1,9i3.7%*

* Restated according to definition of key management.

7.2 Transactions with Related Parties

Al related party transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on an arm's
lempth basls, In addition ko information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following table sets out other significant transactions and balances with related parties:

April 01, 2022to  October 01, 2021
Kyats in million March 31,2023  to March 31,2022
Transactions with related parties during
the financial year:

Interast expenses paidiaccrued 2, 747.3 591.4

Other payments to related parties during
the financial year:

Payments for property, plant-and equipment 9,406.2 B,910.5
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balances from related parties as at the and

of financial year:

Creposit held 7.478.8 4.318.5

Deposit for rental fees 3.0 -

Investment with related parties as at the
end of financial year:

AYA Trust Securlties 1,500.0 1,500.0

Receivable from AYA Trust
AYA Trust Securities 4,667.3 4, 597.8

AYA SOMPO 105.4 -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Kyats In milfion

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Cash on hand 297 1208 225 2300
Account with Central Bank of Myanmar 314,939.9 162,854.0
Account with foreign banks 114,762.7 156,335.9
Account with state-owned banks 1,679.5 44314
Account with private and other banks 32,178.2 1,448.5
760,695.1 550,299.9

Less: Cash and balances with central bank of
Myanmar - restricted for 3% minimum reserve (175,213.1) (171,315.7)°
585,481.9 378,984.2

Minimum reserve requirement
Kyats in million

Myanamar Currency requirement

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Bank's depalst at Central Bank- CaB 140,588.1 120,231.3
Cash on hand 28,197.6 40,077.1
Total Myanmar currency 169,185.7 160,308.4

Fareign Currency requirement

{ Asof March 31, 2023 USD 2,870,167.37 @ 2100, G,027.4 11,007.3
As of March 31, 2022 USD §,190,852.138 1778)

Total minium reserve requirement 175,213 0 171,315.7°

' Restated according to minimum reserve reguirement amount from The Central Bank of

Myanmar (“CBM").

" The Central Bank of Myanmar ("CBM") letter No.Mababa MP/FIR/ege[ogrgola 5/ 645/2022-
2023 dated March 22, 2023.

* The Central Bank of Myanmar ("CBM") letter No.Mababa MP/FIR/egefrgegcla 5/ 298/2021-
2022, dated March 23, 2022.

The Bank maintained Cash on Hapd- Kyats 297,129.8 milllon, Account with central bank of
Myanmar- CAB- Kyats 295,106.5 milllon and Account with central bank of Myanmar -United
State Doflars 9.4 milllon, which was equivalent to Kyat 314,939.9 milllan in deposit at central
bank {March 31, 2022: Cash on hand- Kyats 225,230.0 million , Account with central bank of
Myanmar- CAB- Kyats 145,061.7 million and Account with Central Bank of Myanmar -United
State Dollars 9.4 milllen, which was equivalent to Kyat 162,854.0 million in deposit account at
Central Bank).
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9. PLACEMENT WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Eyals in million

Placemeni with foreign banks

10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Kyats in million
Investment Sacurities

At amortised cost,

- Govarnment treasury bonds (Note 10.1)

= Government treasury Bills
Investment Securities cost

Unguoted equity shares

- Securities-AYA Trust Securities Co., Ltd
- Securities-Myanmar Payment Unlen PCL

« Securities-MB Investmeant Ltd
Unguoted eguity shares at cost

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

153,200.0

167,132.0

153,200.0

167,132.0

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

1,959,187.4 2,316,891.7
57.974.0 5
2,017,161.4 2,316,891.7
1,500.0 1,500.0
200.0 200.0

693.6 693.6
2,393.6 2,393.6

2,019,554.9

2,319,285.2

10.1 Gowvernment treasury bonds
Due to adopiion application of IFRS 9the following financial statement line jtems are
affected.
Kyats In million
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Reported balance 2,019,158.4 2,317,739.9
Adjustment far IFRE O
Priar year adjustment - 49,2
Current year adjustment {2,026.9% (E97.4
Balance {IFRS) 2,017,161.4 2,316,891.7 |
The impact of the adoption of IFRS % on the full year of 2023 and half year of 2022
resufits are as follows:
Kyats [n mulfion
2023 MFRS IFRS 9 2023 IFRS
impacts
Income statemants
Interest income {MNote 28) 484, 260.9 (1,188.8) $33,072.2
Income ta (15,256.8) 261.5 14,995.3
Total comprehensive Income for the | 49,618.7 (927,2) 48,691.5
year
Statement of financial position
Investmant securities 2,019.198.4 £2.037.0) 2,017, 161.4
Dther lighilities { Including deferred tax 133,819.2 51.5 133,870.7
liabilicies)
Retained earnings 121,878.7 {1,629.6) 120,249, 1
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io. INVESTMENT SECURITIES [CONT'D)
10.1 Gowvernment treasury bonds {condt)

Kvats in millfen
2022 MFRS IFRE9® | 2022 IFRs
impacts

Incoame statements

Inktarest income (MNobe 28) 247 5436 (BIT.4) 246 646,3

Totai comprehensive [ncome for the 31,780.4 {897.4) 30,883.0

Vear

Statement of financial position

Investment securities 2,317,739.9 (B48.2) 2,316,891.7

Retained samings B4 ,664.6 (702.3) 83,962.3

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Kyats in miilian March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Demand loans 2.408,122.6 2,262,332.9
Overdarfts 53B,584.1 400,541.3
Hire purchase 261,707.9 329, 966.0
Staff lnans 3,237.7 1,982.4
Credit card recelvables from customers 21,913.5 41,7723
Interest in suspense {Credit Card Only) (5,428.8) (12,7467}
Loans and advances, gross 3,288,237.0 3,023,869.1
Less: Specific atlowance (74,B53.1) {79,459.3)
Loans and advances, net 3,213,383.9 2,944 4058.8

During the year, the Bank had provided the specific aflowance amounting 16,2565.1 million Kyats
on the shartfall of collaterals based on CBM Motification Ma. 17,2017, Assefs Classification and
Prowisioning Reguiations, and CBM Instruction Letter Mo, MaBaBa/MP/FIR/ (154,/2020) dated May
5, 2020 ta all financial institutions for extension penod till Augusk 31, 2023 for full compliance.

12, OTHER ASSETS

Kyats in milflon

Interest recelvable

Interest In suspense

Interest in suspense(penalty fees only)
Prepaymants

Advance tax (FY 2020-2021)
Advance tax (FY Minl 2022)

Advance tax {FY 2022-2023}
Foreclosed properties *

Other receivables

Skock

Receivable from credit card providers
Deferred tax assets

March 31, 2023

March 31, 20232

356,377.2 327,503.6
(1B8,411.1) (1?E,BDE.U}I
(105,767.9) (85,662.8)

14,132.7 5,125.4

. 1,500.0

B,761.4 £,995.0
11,965.0 =
26,215.0 42,996.1
S6,043.6 11,351.6
1,653.8 3,193.5
B58.6 413.2
Hi7.4 5784
222.665.7 137,086.1

*The Bank took possession of properties (land and bulldings) which were held as security for
defaulted loan with the Intention for sale. The foreciosed properties were carried at the
transacted price. There s no impalrment requirement during the period for foreclosed properties,
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13,

1.1

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Kyats in miliion

[nvestment property

Investment property - Building

Kyats in milfion
Cost

Balance off

Additen

Transferred from PPE
Balance off

Accymlated depreciation
Balance b/f
Depreciation for the year

Transferred depreciation from PPE
Balance cff

Accumulated impairment loss
Balance b/ff

Impairment lnss for the year

Balance cff
Carrying amount
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March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

3,484.1

3,555.8

_As at Mar 31, 2033 _As af Mar 31, 2023

3,585.7 =

: 1,361.9

= 2,223.8

3,585.7 3,585.7

{29.9) )

(71.7) (11.3)

v {18.6)
f101.6) [29.9)
3,484.1 3,555.8
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15,

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Due to adoption of IFRS 16, the movement of the Right-Of-Use Assets Is as folows:

_Kyats in million

March 31, 2023 March 31; 2022
Cost
Cpening 60,706.6 5, B97.4
Adjustment & addition for IFRS 16 {a72.4) 1,H09.2
Balance {IFRS) 60,234.2 60, 706.6
Accumulated depreciation
Opening 35,809.0 33,331.2
Adjustrnent & addition for IFRS 16 61027 2.477.8
Balance {IFRS) 41,911.7 35,809.0
| Carrying amount 1:,322.4L 24,897.6

The Bank leases mainly land and buildings for its head office and branches.

The following financial statemant line items are affected due to the impact of the adoption of
IFRS 16 (on full year of 2023 and the haif year of 2022 ) and the results are as follows:

Kyats in milllan

B 2023 MFRS IFRS 16 2023 IFRS

impacts

Income statemeants
Amorrisation {Including Depraciation and
amortisation) {17,916.0} (6,102.7) {24,018.7)

| Finance cost (Including interest expenses) {354,804.3) (771.7) {355,575.0)
Rental expenses {including Operating leasa
ERpENSEs]) {8,396.0} 8,188.1 {207.9)
Income tax expenses {15,256.8) {289.0) (15,545.8)
Total comprehensive incomea for the year 4% 518.7 1,024.8 50,6434
Statement of financlal position
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) . 60,234.2 60,234.2
Accumulated amortisation{Cisclosed under
Right- of -use asgets (Note 15) - 41,911.7 41,911.7
Lease Fabilities (Note 22) (6,015.6) {6,015.56)
Other assets (Iincluding prepayment &
deferred Lax assets){Mote 12) 238.168.8 (15,962.0) £22,.206.8
Other Habilites Including deferred tax
Habilitias {133,819.2) {1,727.4) | (135,546.6)
Retained earnings 121,878.7 {5,382.6) 116,496.1
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15.

15.

17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)

__Kyats in million

2022 MFRS IFRS 16 2022 IFRS
Iimpacts

Income statements

Amortisation (Including Depreciation and

amortisation)} (10,259.9) (2,477.8) (12,7377
Finance cost {Inciuding interest expanses) (171,173.2) (428.7) | (171,601.9)
Rental expenses (including Operating lease

axpenses) (3,940.6) 3,778.2 (162.4)
Income tax expenses (B,781.8) [191.8) (B,973.8)
Total comprehensive income for the year 31,780.4 6749.9 32 480.3
Statemant of financial position

Right-of-use asgets (Mobe 15) - 60, 706.6 60, 706.5
Sccumulated amortisation|Disclosed under

Right- of -use assats (Note 15) - (35,809.0) {35,809.0)
Lease liabllities (Note 22) = (11,395.9) | (11,395.9)
Other assets (Including prepayment &

deferred tax sssets)(Note 12) 155,356.7 (18,470.6) 136,886.2
Other labilites (ncluding deferred  Eax

liabilities (Note 21) {175,125.2) (1,438.4) [ {176,563.5)
Retained eamings B4,664.5 (6,407.2) 78,257.4 |
INTAMGIBLE ASSETS

Kyats in millian JAs at Mar 31,2023 _Asat Mar 31, 2022
Software

Cost

Balance b/f 19,303.8 18,142.5
Additon 24826.1 i,161.3
Current year adjustment {124.4) =
Balance off 23.005.4 19.303.8
Balance by/f {4,196.5) {2,406.9)
Depraciation for the year (5,284.8) (1,789.7)
Transferred depreciation from PPE = ey
Balance cff (5,481.4) [4,196.5)
Carrying amount 13,524.1 15,107.3

BORROWING FROM BANKS

Kyats \n million

Borrowing from CBM 7%
(Period:Jan-2023 to Jun-2023)
Borrowing fram Private Bank

March 31, 2023

March 21, 2022

65,783.7 300,000.0
ﬂa UM-'U 2
B6,783.7 300,000.0
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is8.

19,

20.

21.

DEPOSITS FROM BANKS
Kyats in million
Current deposits of stabe banks

Current deposits of foreign banks
Current deposits of private banks

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
Kyats In million
Saving deposits of customers

Fized deposits of customers
Call deposits of customers

Current deposits of customers

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Kats in mitlian

Repurchase agrements [Borrowing from

state bank)

{6.5% p.a, Perlod 31.3.2022-29.4.2022)

OTHER LIABILITIES

Kyats in miliion

Accrued inberest pavable

Sundry depasits

FE Equivalent Account

Payment arder account

Card payables

2% General pravision GLLR
Interbank bormowing maney market
Income tax payable ( Note 21.1)
Wages and salary payable
LUnearned income

Sundry creditors

Unclaimed liabilites

Deferred tax liabllities (IFRS 9 & 16)
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March 31, 2023

Mareh 31, 2022

15,507.3 16,060.7
4,724.6 4,809.6
1,124.3 2,380.7
21,356.2 23,250.9
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,257,571.2 2.468,792.6
1,945,516 8 1,634,221.7
2,257,777.8 1,006,958.4
603,285.1 455, 489.6
6,064,150.9 5,565,462.4

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

100,617.2

100,517.2

March 31, 2023 \arch 31, 2022
41, 556.6 44,8457
11,284.0 39,552.3

(3,662.0) 14,827.5
7.B43.1 i8,134.6
15,486.8 i5,984.9
24,9047 -
. 21,336.0
24,732.0 13,793.8
4,575.6 1,675.6
A75.6 3586.3
1,785.4 3,673.0
S38.4 205.8
1,778.9 1,489.9
135 598.1 176,615.1
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21.1 Income tax payable*

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Incoms tax payable (FY 2020-2021) = 5,012.0
Income tax payable (FY Minl 2021-2022) B, 760.4 8,781.8
Income tax payable (FY 2022-2023) 15,971.6
24,732.0 137038

*As of March 31, 2023, the bank had paid income tax Kyats 8,761.4 million for FY 2021-22 and
Kyats 11,965.0 for first three quarters of FY 2022-23, for a total of Kyat 20,726.4 (Note 12).The
bank had paid Kyat 4,010 million for feurth quarter of FY 2022-23 as of April 30, 2023 and
total amount paid for FY 2022-23 to Kyat 15,975.0 million.

22. LEASE LIABILITIES

Dire to adoption application of IFRS 16, the movemant of the lease liabillties |5 as folows:

Kyats in million

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening 11,395.9 11,985.0
Adjustment as per IFRS 16

Lease adjustment

Prior year adjustmant

Current year adjustment [601.1) 82,2

Addition B =

Lease payments {5,556.4) (1,900.0)

Interest expenses 771.7 428.7
Balanee (IFRS) (Note 15) 6,015.6 11,395.9 |

The Bank leases mainly land and buildings for its head office and branches, ATM's places and
fereign exchange counter.

23. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Kyats in million March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
84,000.0 71,120.0

Pursuant to the Issuance by CBM of their Directive 3/2019 on January 24™, 2019, the Bank had
enterad into an agreement to take the subordinated facilitiy from Mizuho Bank. Following the receipt
of the requisite approval from CBM, the Bank received the the Suburdinated Debt on November 8%,
2019, The Subordinated Debt is in the amount of USD 40 million for a tenor of 10 years. The
Investor may not call for the repayment any time earlier, however, the bank may prepay any tme
after 2 years. As of March 31, 2023, the interest is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of 3
menths LIBOR plus 3,00% margin,
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24, SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and paid up:
As at October 1, 2021
Issued in the yvear

As at March 31,2022
Issued In the year

As at March 31, 2023

Number of Ordinary Shares

Share Capital

{Kyats in miliion)

1,400,000 140,000.0
1,400,000 140,000.0
g0 9.0
1,400,090 140,009.0

The following table sets out the sharehoiders of the Bank as at the end of the reporting period:

Kyats in mitfian

5/N Shareholder

U Zaw Zaw

Daw Htay Htay Khine

U Than Zaw

U Soe Tint

U Ohn Kyaw @ U Ave Thwin
Daw S5an San

Daw Khin Saw Oo

U Myint Zaw

Daw Ehin Ma Ma

R RN T RO

25, RESERVES

Kyats in million

Ag at Oatober 1, 2021
Addition

Az at March 31, 2022
Addition

Transfer*

As at March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Humber of MNumber of
Crdinary Percentage Ordinary Parcentage
Shares hald Shares held
1,036,000 74.0%: 1,036,000 74.0%
170,000 12.2% 170,000 12.2%
34,000 2.8 %, 34,000 2.45%
3,000 4,59 @3,000 4.5%
63,000 4,59 63,000 4.5%
34,000 2.4% 34,000 2.4%
30 0.0%: - -
30 0.0% - -
30 G.0% -
400,090 100.0% 1,400,000 100.0%
Siatutory General
Reserves' Reserves?® Tatal
=2, 7L1.8 G, Um0 108,711.8
7.945.1 - 7.245.1
50,656.9 66, 000.0 116,656.9
12,404.7 - 12,404.7
(24,904.7) (24,804.7)
63.061.6 41,085.3 104,156.9

1 Section 35{a} of the Finandal Institutions Law of Myanmar 2016 requires, the Bank to
prowide 25% of Met Profit afier Tax in a Statutory Reserve account wntll the account
reaches 100% of paid-up capital of the Bank,

s The Central Bank of Myanmar ("CBM") Motification Mo. 17/2017 requires the Bank to set
aside 2% (March 31, 2022 2%} of the total balence of Loans and advances as General
Reserves, As at the date of this report, the Bank is compliant with this reguiatory

reguirament.

3 The pravision amount of General provision GLLR Kyats 24,904.7 million that has been
provided on Net profit before tax was transferred to Other liabilities [ Note 21).
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26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The following sets out the Bank's contingent llabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based
on the maximum amount the Bank would have to pay if the obligations of the instruments ssued

are called upon?

Kyats in million March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Impart latters of credit " 45, 543.0
Bank guarantees 67,646,1 197,202.9
67.626.1 242,.745.9
27. COMMITMENTS
27.1 Outstanding commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Bank has the following commitments;
In Kyats milfions . March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Undrawn loan commitments 210,135.8 142,615.2
210,135.8 142,615.2
27.2 Minimum lease payments
April 1, 2022 to October 1, 2021
In Kyats miftans March 31, 2023 _to March 31, 20232
Minimum lease payments pald under
operating leases recogrised as an axpense
during the year 207.9 162.4
{ Mote 32)
207.9 1624
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Bank for its leases of land and
buildings for its head office and branches with lease term fess than a year.
28, MET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income comprises interest arising from various types of lending and investment actvitios
interest expense comprises all interest incurred on deposits and berrowings from bank and non-

Dank customers.

Interest income and axpense (nclude the following:
April 1, 2022 to October 1, 2021 to

s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest income arising fram;

Loans and advances 283 487.6 138,985 4

Investment securities 185,138.4 106,659.9

Deposits with banks &,111.5 133.9

Trade finance 8,334.6 B62.9
483,072.2 246,646.3

Interest expense arising from:

Deposits from bank and non-bank customers {338,415.0) (161,304.1)
Borrowings from banks {16,389.3) (%,869.1)
Finance cost [(771.7} {428.7)

(355,576.0) {171,601.9)
Net interast income 127,496.2 75,044.9
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249, FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME, NET
Fees, commission and service charges income are generated from the range of activities that the
Bank provides. Befow |s the breakdown on fees on commission income and expense,
April 1, 2022 ta October 1, 2021 to
Kyats in milliiar March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fee and commission income:
Service charges 3% 686.4 11,3724
Commission fees 18,3944 E68.0
Exchange fees 7,292.5 3,078.8
Commitment feas 703.3 {23.8)
Default Mees 20,2732 B,063.5
SWIFT/Telex charges g93.4 2.3
86,443.2 23,161.6
Fee and commission expense:
Bank charges {21,3202.7) {504.6)
Net fee and commission incomae 65,140.5 22,657.0
30. OTHER INCOME f{EXPENSE)
) . April 1, 2022 to Dctobar 1, 2021 to
TS i Fa ) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Forelgn exchange (loss) /gain (&,850.0) 1,139.0
Foreign exchange transaction gain/ (loss) 14 848.7 1,378.4
Others 186.1 1353
8,182.7 2,652.6
31. GENMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Kpaka in milifon

Wages and salaries
Supphes and services
Maintanance and repair
Professional feas

Other personnel costs

Rates and taxes

Advertising and branding
Travel and entertalnment
Social security centributions
Insurance
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April 1, 2022 ¢a
____ March 31, 2023

October 1, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

35,7056 16,863.1
15,703.2 5,254.8
10,958.5 5,781.3
6,855.2 2,774.4
8,788.3 1,504.2
1,799.8 1,010.6
2,910.9 1,519.9
50.7 9.0
574.8 298.9
494.9 205.7
83,841.9 35,222.0
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32.  Operating lease expenses

April 1, 2022 to October 1, 2021
Kyats i) million _ March 31, 2023 _to March 31, 2022
Minimum kease payments paid under operating leasss

recogrised as an expense during the year 207.9 162.4

33. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE
April 1, 2022 to October 1, 2021 to

Kyats in millian March 31, 2023 Mafrch 31, 2022
Other operating expenses 11,4855 2,101.1

11,485.5 2,101.1

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Bank estimates Income kax expense on profit to approximate Myanmasr's corporate tax rate
of 22% of profit before tax, net of tax adjustments.
April 1, 2022 to  October 1, 2020 to

__March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before tax 65,011.8 40,525.1
Adjustment for FX revaluation loss / (gain) 6,.850.0 {1,139.0}
Adjustment of gain of disposal (187.0) {118.5)
Adjustment of capital gain tax 18.7 -
Taxable Incoma 71,693.5 39,267.6
[ncame tax effect at Statubtory Rate 22% 15,772.6 B.638.9
Effect of expenses that are not deductibla in

determining taxable profit 229.0 1154
nder provision for Income tax of FY (2020-2021) - 35.7
Others : (14.3)
Tax release adjustment FY 2019-2020 == {(714.8) 4
Incamea tax expense,/{credit) recognised in 15,286.8 8,773.7

prafit or loss
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35. CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

in Kyats miflions

As at March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Placement with other financial institutions
Investment securities

Loan and advances

Bills receivabls

Other assets

Investment property

Property, plant and eguipment
Right=of-use assets

Intangibles

LIABILITIES

Borrowing from state banks
Depesits from banks
Deposits from customers
Repurchase agreements
Othier llabilitles

Lease liabilities

Subordineted debt

As at March 31, 2022
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Placement with ather fimancial institutions
Investment securities

Loan and advancos

Bills recelvable

Other assets

Investment property
Property, plant and equipmen
Right-of-use assets
Intangibles

LIABILITIES

Barrowing from state banks
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customearns
Repurchase agresmants
Cther llabilities

Lease liabilitles
Subordinated debt
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Current Hon-current Tatal
TRO,ED5.1 = 760,695.1
153,200.0 - 153,200.0
201,262.6 1,728,292.3  2,019,554.9

2,116,007.8 1,087,376.0  3,213,383.9

14,458.0 . 14,458.0
2226657 = 222 665.7

= 3,484 1 34841
- 337,648.7 337,648.7
= 18,3224 18,3224
E 13,524.1 13,5241
3,558,289.2  3,198,647.7 6,756,936.9

B86,783.7 ~ 86,783.7

21,356.1 . 21,3561

5,810,504.4 253,646.4  6,064,150.9
133,819.2 1,778.9 135,508.1
736.5 5,275.1 6,015.5

= 84,000.0 B4,000.0
6,053,200.0 344,704.5 6,397,904.5
550,2599.9 - £50,299.9
167,132.0 - 167,132.0
725, 586.5 1,593,69E.8 £,319,285.2
1,804, 038.1 1,140.371.7 2.5944 . 409.8
77,215.5 - 77,215.5
137,085,1 = 137,086.1

. 3,555.8 3,555.8

- 343,675.3 343,675.3

24,897.6 24,B97.6

. 15,107.3 15,107.3
3,461,358.1 3,131,306.5 6,582,664.5
300, 000.0 30:0,000.0
23,2509 . 23,250.9

5. 206,041.9 359,420.4 5,565.462.4
100,617.2 . 100,617.2
175,125.2 1,489.9 176,615.1
1,388.4 10,007.5 11,395.9

- T1,120.0 71,130.0
5,806,423.6 442,037.8 6,248,461.4
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36, ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

amounts in Ehis report have been rounded off to the nearest million currency units, or In certain
cases, the nearest MME,

37. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The financial statements for twelve-month year ended March 31, 2023 and the financial
statements for the six-month perled ended March 31, 2022 are presented as comparative
figures of the current period financial statements, Therefore, the amounts presented in the
financial statements are not entirely comparable.

38B. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Despire the challenges on the aconomy and market conditiens around the world and in Myanmar,
the Bank continues to adopt the Business Continuity Plans ("BCP") and measures to maintaln
the sustainable business growth.

The Bank conducts regular review on its intermal policies and processes o manage the Buginess
more effectively and mitigate the potential risk exposure, It also focuses on the maximization of
resaurces and cost optimization to skay competitive |n the industry.

Supporting customers

The Bank's primary focus of providing guality services fo Its customers In 2 more convenient
channels was not changed, Tt eontinuously monitors the ways it serves the customers and the
customears” journey. It continuously invests in technology infrastructure to give better customers'
experience through digltalization of its operational processes. Understanding the customers'
needs and providing customized solutions to sult the demands of the customears has always baen
ehe of the key purposes of the Banlk.

Supporting its people

Human Resources is the most valuable resources of the Bank, and it sets the clear guidelines on
the career development of the employees, The reepertive departments implamanted the Koy
Performance Indicators (KPI) for performance monitoring and Improvement purposes. Internal
and external training pregrams for technical and inter-personal skills are regularly provided to
the empiovees to upgrade the knowledge and skill set required for career development.

Managing a strong balance shest

The Bank also hias an Assets & Liabliities Management Committee ("ALCD") in place to monitor
the efficient utilization of Its assets and maintaining the sppropriate amount of liabilitles in the
pursuit of its business objectives despite the market condition remains challenging a5 at the
reporting date, The bank is also monitering closely the foreign currency management (o mitigate
the currency risk sxposurs,

One of the key earning assets to the Bank is loans to the customers and Credit Committee
pwersights the loans positions to monitor the recoverability and any pobential risk exposures,

The Bank has considered the impact of major events to its knowledge till March 2023 and s In
the view that there werg no major events requiring shanificant adjustments to the financial
statements except for the continuing impact frem the market conditions and other unforeseeable
circumstances. However, any unforesesable effects have not been accounted for in the financial
stateaments.
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38. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD{cont'D)
Managing liguidity

The Bank has a strong liguidity position mainly contributed by the |ncrease in deposit and it
closely monitors the efficlent utilization of fund too rmaximize the shareholgers’ return, The main
abjective of managing liquidity is to ensure that the bank can fulfil the needs of the customers to
the best of its ability as and when it is due.

The Bank ioan to deposit ratio (LDR) as of March 31, 2023 was 54.13% (March 31, 2022
54.33%) and the Liquidity Ratio as at March 31, 2023 was 48.85% ( March 31, 2022 48.35%),

Managing rizk exposure

While we strive for business continuity and growth, the Bank doesn't compromise an the risk
manzgement, Under the guidance of Board Risk and Compliance Committes (BRCC), it
continuously reviews the internal policies and procedures to ensure running the businzss
smapthly and in compllance with the regulatory reporting requirements, On a regular basis, the
potential risks and mitigating factors are identified to manage the calculated risks. For the
purpase of conducting the business operation In prescribed pollicies and moanltoring the potential
rigk exposure, the intemal audit team performs its audit in line with the risk-based approaches
to focus more on significant risk areas. With the guidance from Audit Committee, Internal Audit
team prapares an annual audit plan and conducts its audit. Regular risk assessment and
management trainings are provided to all stakeholders for awareness and risk mitigation
pUFDQEES.

39. AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been authorized
for lssue on August 15, 2023,
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Our Brand Promise - Your Trusted Partner

AYA Bank is the bank of choice for anyone who is looking for fast, reliable, honest banking

relationships. AYA Bank offers the full range of retail and commercial banking products and services

and is in tune with domestic customs and international standards in its governance and operations.
For your long-term banking needs, AYA bank is your trusted partner in Myanmar.

Our brand promise represent the foundational commitment and deeply held beliefs that allow AYA
to navigate complex situations while keeping our identity and culture at the forefront.
AYA Bank regards Brand Promise as a standard and non-negotiable. This will be adopted to give
effect to our core values and to guide our relationships with all our stakeholders and other relevant
role-players as well as to outline our commitments to them. We strive our utmost to maintain our
Brand Promise and enhance the public’s confidence in AYA Bank.
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A AYA Bank

No. 416, Corner of Maharbandoola Road & Maharbandoola Garden Street,
Kyauktada Township, Yangon, Myanmar.
Block No. (3/B), Quarter No-23(G-1), Corner of Strand Road & Thit Taw Road,

River View Point Condominium, Ahlone Township, Yangon, Myanmar.

e 01-2317777 @ info@ayabank.com ayabank.com o ayabank https://bit.ly/3hDrN8K o https://t.me/AYABankMyanmar



